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Mission Statement

Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is united in its commitment to
offering excellence in Chinese music. With a contemporary
momentum and a professional spirit, we aim to strive for the
peak in music and attain the status of a world-class orchestra
that is the pride of Hong Kong people.

FEPLERB AP OF UL
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is
The Venue Partner of the Hong Kong Cultural Centre

BETLEREEFITRRBTED
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is financially supported by
the Government of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region
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When | look back last year, being my first year as Chairman of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra, | am deeply
impressed by the commitment and determination of all those associated with the Orchestra who have worked so
hard and diligently to drive the Orchestra forward. With coordinated efforts, the Orchestra was enabled to make
significant achievements in the year under review, which | am pleased to highlight in this report.

Artistic Development

Under the able leadership of our Artistic Director Mr Yan Huichang, the past year was characterized by dynamic
partnerships, diverse programming and expanded educational programmes.

The Orchestra collaborated with luminaries such as Mr Yo-Yo Ma, Dr Richard Tsang and Mr Guo Wenjing in bringing
to the audiences unique and diversified concert experience. The encouraging messages from the artists who have
worked with the Orchestra and the guests who have attended our concerts (you may refer to page 14-15 for the
messages) further strengthen our motivation and determination to strive for the highest quality in each of our artistic
endeavours.

The Orchestra is dedicated to enriching and inspiring the community through music education. The Orchestra has
a comprehensive blueprint for music education encompassing the general public, the children and youngsters, as
well as those who aspire to be professional musicians. To sustain the development of Chinese music, we believe it
is important to groom both music talents and enlightened audiences.

Financial Performance

The past year was not easy for the Orchestra. In a challenging economic environment, the Orchestra managed
to achieve satisfactory operating results. Many factors played a role in achieving such results: the generosity of
our sponsors, the support of our audiences and also our adherence to disciplined cost containment efforts. | am
particularly pleased that, despite adverse economic conditions when most people cut back on expenses, we still
recorded a higher paid attendance as compared to last year, which is an indication of the public’s recognition of
the quality of the Orchestra’s performances.

Corporate Governance

Over the courses of many years since the incorporation of the Orchestra, the groundwork was laid for a
comprehensive corporate governance framework. Credit goes to my predecessors Dr Carlye Tsui and Dr Kelvin
Wong and all those who have involved in that establishment process. The Orchestra’s Council Members come
from diverse backgrounds. Their wide range of expertise has given insightful opinions covering every aspect of
the Orchestra’s operations. They embrace the mission and vision of the Orchestra and are highly dedicated, which
is exemplified by their high attendance at meetings. | am fortunate to have such colleagues in the Council, whom
| can draw on for their knowledge and inspiration. These individuals collectively have ensured that the Orchestra
remains a viable and well governed organization.

Looking Ahead

While we are pleased with the achievements, we are mindful of the challenges laid ahead of us. The Orchestra
promises to continue our efforts in enlarging and engaging audiences, expanding sources of income, as well as
retaining the momentum of artistic development. Please rest assured that the Orchestra will continue to bring to our
audiences memorable experiences in Chinese music.

II
.

Henry Lai
Chairman
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Artistic Directors’ Review
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As a cultural ambassador of Hong Kong, The Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra has evolved from a performance-
oriented Chinese music group into an organization that encompasses concert performance, cultural promotion,
education and research, radiating its influence in Chinese music.

Popularizing the Education of Chinese Music

Education lies at the very core of the Orchestra’s efforts in promoting Chinese music, because we firmly believe
that only with good music education can the development of Chinese music sustain. Being aware of the importance
of cultural life to the psychological well-being of Hong Kong citizens, the Orchestra has been actively organizing
various types of educational activities, which include open rehearsals and music appreciation concerts. To
enhance the access of music education to the underprivileged sections of the society, in the year under review, the
Orchestra organized the “Music all over Hong Kong’s 18 Districts” Concert series, continued with the “Music for
Love” Scheme and set up a brand-new “Chinese Music Alive” Scheme. Under the “Chinese Music Alive” Scheme,
the vulnerable groups were invited to attend free concerts, talks and performance classes, thanks to the generous
sponsorships from the Kerry Group Kuok Foundation Ltd.

The Orchestra continued with the programme “Chinese Music DIY” with the support from The Hong Kong Bank
Foundation. The programme consists of music leadership certificate workshops, interactive concerts and a musical
score library. By providing resources to participants, the programme has facilitated the practice and performance
of Chinese orchestral music at schools.

Supporting the Development of Local Musicians

To encourage the creativity of Hong Kong composers in Chinese orchestra composition, the Orchestra continued
with the “Cadenzas of Hong Kong”, where local composers were invited to write new works that illustrate their
inspirations from the individual character and life of the 18 districts of Hong Kong. Some of the works were brought
to stage at the concerts featuring Hong Kong composers.

The Orchestra also continued with the Professional Orchestral Internship Programme, a collaboration between the
Orchestra and The Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts to nurture local talents in Chinese music. Every year,
the Academy sends its students to the Orchestra for internship.

Preserving Traditions, Exploring Modernity

In the year under review, the Orchestra launched a brand-new concert series entitled “A Dialogue between
Traditions and Modernity”. The first concert in the series was “The Long and Winding Silk Road”. This is a series
that invites the audiences to find their cultural roots and position in the Cultural Time Tunnel.

“Yo-Yo Ma & HKCO” brought to the audience a fresh experience of modern Chinese music. The idea of joining
hands in a concert between Yo-Yo Ma and the HKCO came about in 2004, when | was on tour to the UK. After four
years of meticulous planning, the concert was finally made happen. At the concert, the Orchestra presented the
world premier of the commissioned work “Zhuang Zhou's Dream” by renowned composer Zhao Jiping. The concert
won broad acclaim.

Acknowledgements

The milestones achieved would not have been possible without the support from the audience, the business sector,
supporting organizations and the Government of Hong Kong. My special thanks go to the Council for their guidance and
trust, my colleagues of the Artistic Department and the Administration Department. Without their support, the Orchestra
would not have achieved so much and earned acclaim from local community and music professionals abroad.

f@%

Yan Huichang
Artistic Director
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| am pleased to report that financial year 2008/2009 was another great year for Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra.
With the broad vision of the Council and its effective stewardship, profound knowledge of the Artistic Director, his
creativity and superb artistic skills, as well as the dedication of the Orchestra’s members from both the artistic
department and administration department, the Orchestra has been enabled to move one step closer to our mission
of attaining the status of a world-class orchestra that is the pride of Hong Kong people.

Achieving More in Times of Difficulty

The financial tsunami coupled with the Sichuan earthquake have caused severe impact on the economy. However,
despite the adverse economic conditions, the Orchestra was able to achieve more as compared to the previous
year through the support of audience. In the year under review, the Orchestra organised 50 sessions of concerts
in various formats and themes, 75 outreach performances, 7 overseas performances and 2 musical instrument
festivals, namely the Hong Kong Drum Festival and the Hong Kong Dulcimer Festival. The number of audience
at regular concerts increased by 12%. It is a result of the Orchestra’s efforts in promoting Chinese music to the
entire community through different concerts, outreach activities, leading to an enhanced interest in Chinese music
and awareness of the Orchestra. Last but not least is the Orchestra’s wide spectrum of performance format and
repertoire that cater for many different musical tastes. The Orchestra’s undertaking of exploring new frontiers in
music and experimenting with new techniques and styles constantly bring to the audience fresh experiences.

Expanding Partnerships to Enrich Programme Offerings

In additional to organizing educational concert with the Chung Ying Theatre, the Orchestra also worked in
collaboration with Hong Kong Chinese Instrumental Music Association to organize the Hong Kong International
Festival of Chinese Orchestras. As part of our venue partnership program with the Hong Kong Cultural Centre, this
Festival was not only the first of its kind in Hong Kong, it was also a spectacular event for the Chinese music world.
A total of 47 professional and non-professional music groups from over 10 countries and regions, including Hong
Kong, were invited to take part in the Festival. Music lovers were brought together to promote Chinese music in a
music symphony representative of our era. 14 concerts were held in various venues in Hong Kong, so that people in
every part of the city could share the excitement of music-making.

Realizing the importance of electronic media in present days, the Orchestra worked with Google.com and
participated in the activities organized by its Youtube Symphony Orchestra. The Orchestra rearranged Eroica and
performed a Chinese orchestral version of Eroica. The video has received enthusiastic response from all over the
world.

Building partnerships with the business sector has enabled the Orchestra to tailor-make programmes to certain
groups of audience. With support from The Hongkong Bank Foundation and the Kerry Group Kuok Foundation Ltd,
the Orchestra organized the “Chinese Music DIY” programme and the “Chinese Music Alive” programme, which
brought benefits to the younger generation and the under-privileged groups.

Acknowledgements

In the year under review, the Orchestra received awards for our efforts in branding, supporting environmental
friendliness and social responsibilities. While we feel encouraged by the achievements, we cannot afford to be
complacent. We are all set to achieve yet more milestones and hope that we will have the continuous support from
the Government, our audiences, sponsors, partners, our Council and colleagues of the Orchestra. They are the
cornerstones of our future success.

Chin Man-wah Celina
Executive Director
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fi B & &8 Programmes and Activities

HEf Date Z4e | % R5EE) Concerts / Special Events
2008
48 April k88

The Long and Winding Silk Road

mipge A ARERREE

The Long and Winding Silk Road Open Rehearsal and Music Appreciation
EgHs — A RERIG

The Poignant Sounds of the Hugin — Liu Changfu & Liu Yang

AERHE — ARBRAHARERREE

The Poignant Sounds of the Hugin — Liu Changfu & Liu Yang Open Rehearsal and Music Appreciation
I RBARIE

Liu Changfu Master Class

BREBLBERT

Talks on Music for Tranquility of Mind

JER2008 R EFE—F H
The 100-day countdown to the Beijing Olympic Games

58 May B — KB LAFIR R

Painting with Chinese Music — A Galactic Vision of Law Wing-fai

EMaR — BKENRETEARRAERREE

Painting with Chinese Music — A Galactic Vision of Law Wing-fai Open Rehearsal and Music Appreciation
BIERT

Apricot Blossoms Against a Blue Sky

L2008 R EE NFEER B EL
Opening Ceremony of the Olympic Torch Relay

JER2008 RBE A FEMABEX

Closing Ceremony of the Olympic Torch Relay
20087 Bl (R II) 318 & &1 20 & B

2008 China (Shenzhen) Arts Festival of ICIF

6H June HEEL

Music for Tranquility of Mind IlI

EEAS12BE1TE)

Artistes 512 Fund Raising Campaign

EIBEE & HKCO Il

Koi Ming-fai & HKCO Il

SHEBKEAGSL IR — 2008t RARECNELEATEELE
Qinghai International Musical Journey on Water and Life Special Concert for World Desertification and
Draught Prevention Day (2008)

RER M EHERE LR T

Wind Instrument workshop of LCSD

F44DIY 2008

Chinese Music 2008

7R July B4R S S KB KRB ER

International Arts Carnival — The Legend of Mulan

BRGES KB AHEHRRFRREE

International Arts Carnival — The Legend of Mulan Open Rehearsal and Music Appreciation

8 A August EBHER Discovery : tHRBE (TEH - KA BE - TRELS)
The Hong Kong Dulcimer Festival — Discovery : Dulcimers around the World (Workshops, Master Class,
Exhibition, Lunch-time Concerts)

@
c
.
5
®
n
(2]
Y
)
=
)
=




fi B R EH Programmes and Activities

HHf Date

9H September

10 A October

11 A November

12 A December

Z4e | %5558 Concerts / Special Events

EEZR (HBEE)

Roots of the Chinese (Re-run)

BEPLENAFRE

Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra 30th Anniversary Exhibition

200878 B FR h 2440 #

RESge —F1IEM

NE M

ReZde — tH%NH

2008 Hong Kong International Festival of Chinese Orchestras #
Opening Concert — A Musical Celebration

Eight Sounds in Tune — A Chinese Orchestral Gala

Closing Concert — Music under Heaven

2008FTR B &AM KRR & HKCO

2008 New Vision Arts Festival Yo-Yo Ma & HKCO

BEENBRIUABABEARE

Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition
EBENBRUXNERBEABTERRIEL RFE & HE N

Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition Winners & Guest Artist Performance
BB SRERHEE X

Hong Kong Drum Festival — Majestic Drums XI

R EEEREMBETE — @mIKER - £EHE (2008)

Plano de Generalizacao da Educacao Artistica para Aluncs do Ensino Secundario — Saborear a Tradicao
Alpreciar em Conjunto a Musica Chinesa (2008)

Ln1sRRENMEES

Music all over Hong Kong's 18 Districts
HKCO &%

Rising Stars of HKCO

THELHE (—)

Chinese Music Select 1997-2007 |

2009

1H January

2 A February

3 A March

RRBILHEB

Modern Music with its Lively Appeal
@I & HKCO

Richard Tsang & HKCO

TEKLH (D)

Chinese Music Select 1997-2007 Il

2009F BEMTEN SRk B — FPXRA LR

2009 Hong Kong Arts Festival — Music about China lll Guo Wenjing’s World of Chinese Music
REBX R P LA

Appreciation of Guo Wenjing's Music

BHRHB IV

A Legacy of Exotic Lyricism IV

BB — EREEELE |

Passionné Shanghai — HKCO & Friends |l

# SN 58] 2 &7 B Programmes of Venue Partnership
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K8 Publications
¥/ ZEfm Audio Product
2008%4 A

April 2008

2008%F4 A

April 2008

2008%11H

November 2008
20084124

December 2008
2008%12A

December 2008

F% Publication

2008%12A
December 2008

BUAM

This Boundless Land

SRMBHEE

Routes of Pipa

ZIBIE & HKCO I

Koi Ming-fai & HKCO IlI

BIMKEE VI— REER

Majestic Drums VI — Dragons in the Sky
BREEHREH R — HRES

The Wonderful Winds of Guo Yazhi - The Suona Story

EEPLE =T AFHT
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra 30th Anniversary

B B EEI# R Statistics of Performances and Activities

TEHIZ 4 & Regular Concerts

ENo. of Sets
£ 8INo. of Performances
B Z A KSize of Audience

SNBAL[E)EE) Outreach Community Activities

5 #HNo. of Performances
BLR A XSize of Audience

Hheh = %€ Concert Tours

5 #HNo. of Performances
BLR AXSize of Audience

2009 2008
31 32*

50 46*
42,632 38,065*

75 75
109,573 111,039
7 17
6,515 17,348

\qR
f

EE /5% Exhibitions

Hi& A No. of Venues
K& No. of Days

H iR Publications

E4T¥Books
¥ ZEmAudio/video products

*BECMERHLO JRENS LS

Exclude commissioned concerts to make comparison on consistent basis




=[]
Honours and Awards

SRME S e A o T 00 A S o LT 238 I SCAL R R B8
Awarded the Judging Panel’s Grand Prize in the 2nd Hong Kong Corporate Branding Award

QM BRORSIEHE [ SRR Mt 8 TR P00 ] 2 dn R 08 B B AR Gl

The Series of Eco-Huqin developed by the Orchestra was awarded

the “Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence-“Class of Good” Productwise Label”.

PG AL o I B Ok iy AR [ IR0 PR BR R ] ARGE

Awarded the “Caring Organisation” logo by the Hong Kong Council of Social Services.
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The HKCO was in its comfort
zone with Zhao, whose technical
and timbral grasp of traditional
Chinese instruments is beyond
reproach. Advantage HKCO.

Ken Smith Financial Times

At A an o i
AEET TSNk S AR m Y
G#EE s AR AT F AT
wHALR LM
& cEBITBER

R

wavem

e H'ra.-“'z Hud Ao e o Aeecelp PR
f-{.r/q-'sq_{,-'.rzm._g.o,,_qm Hee 2
j"oc "iu:;? PR ﬁﬁrzr-‘na.-c.f{/ L T

rir B

e e by By & i
IIJ,I:'Jm!-'a-nF et ,.-n""’d et

Cire Arcks oace

RLRREER D - MEBRARA
B BB REE SR
ey 2R

L':.J‘r-.:ﬂ;ﬁ.-l.g'd-n !

A& (EZE#H)

g XM g - e A
RIS ML HPCRHOIE ° ZFTIA
FFE - ERA/MMEEEFIEN
BREPSLEE ﬁ’ﬁ+¢)€ﬁ’]"ﬂzl
BOKFRRABREN  BSHAR
LRARFBICK -

n\.}é 1o ? 9%’3‘31}2:’1‘; f;‘?i .
% i,

e

J.r‘l‘? f.i4

SEH (FEREZ)

ﬂwkqw

@hﬁk

wa W‘

IndFL
1}m#Cﬁﬁ*

ps = 4

SN P
Z-:r.-.l-,p,-'_';,.n,

K -\i =T 4

g e zw}

TP P
;ﬁ-&g.{;“.!J«;ﬂ fr‘l?&w ﬁi‘-’;— Tl

gh}mm-‘i;
4

FEBNIEERNEENEER
RIWR  RBELE—#TE0HEHE
FEKFE

B (XE#HR)

G Aoikos 23] 2 145w

& ‘ﬁ'm‘{“ 1, “j? i -ﬁg;{.ﬁ

Ak & te %:; ¥y
K%){rimajﬁ

1
-

%
=
=]
w
c
1]
2
@
13
»
Py
)
<
s
=




@
c
@
5
@
»
(2]
Py
)
<.
)
=

2 2BREE

’d< Orchestral Season Concerts Hightlights

588
The Long and Winding Silk Road

VIR A B i st B - B30 BUR B s AL a8 o -

To broaden audiences' cultural literacy through a lucid
performance

a PESUEBREREXBEERS L

ot R EEE

BERD - E5E - E@ﬁuﬁ

BE  AEXBERASEL

Co-presenter : Centre for Ethnic and Folk Literature and Art Development,
Ministry of Culture, P.R.C.

Co-organizer : Chung Ying Theatre Company

Performance Appreciation : Chung King-fai & Michael Wong

Performance : The “East Granary” Drum Music Society of the Tang Paradise

12.4.2008 & i A IR THRE TR B B B
12.4.2008 performance is sponsored by BComBEST of Bank of Communications

R LIk

Roots of the Chinese
R B SR > U O A

Re-run of the award winning programme with popular demand

LEBEBEREREERIKEENETH QB R [ RERAFEE]
[BANERE & [SLAIENEIE] - EENEEEEARNETOTERE
A (GEHEM) -

Roots of the Chinese won a number of awards at the China Gold Record

Awards, including an award in the “Instrumental Music — Album” category, an award in the “Instrumental Music — Performance”
category, and a special award for Original Composition for the creative team of “Roots of the Chinese”. Conductor Yan Huichang
also won the Jurors’ Award for Conducting in the Multi Arts category.

BHER : FEmiE e 2EFEZ

Title Sponsor : Care and Heath e Lingzhi Master _I_ ﬂE g ﬂ I & I |
Chinese Music Select 1997-2007 1 & 11

ZIB@BE&HKCO 111 BT LS » 18
o . o >N AR ° s &H;H H °
Koi Mmg'fal & HKCO I Interaction with audience by inviting them to cast

i 0 HE A W IR I SR IR B A their votes

Support to promote the first item of the world  7E1997F2007FHMAEH M FHL+  ABBRZELZ ER
intangible cultural heritage Hong Kong BERFXMNMBENMEN [THLH] ARNZTLEFEL - &
RARKRUEEEEREATEZNS Ham (FA) o

%Eﬂﬁfﬁ%ﬂﬁ%/\i%ﬂ% ) ﬂ%&Y{t(%ﬂ(ﬂi)%ﬂ%ﬁﬂtb&ﬂ)\ \<</\ The audience voted for their favourites among the works
BIEMBESUDAER X ERSE) - REB EAERIFNEL erformed by the Orchestra between 1997 and 2007. The
BE - PRERERPAARDN R EZERBMRT 25 P Y : .

B IS A - % ) - works selected were presented in two sets of concerts entitled
ZAREas e TIRREE , “Chinese Music Select 1997-2007". One of the favorites, The
Chinese opera was officially inscribed onto UNESCO (United Yellow River Piano
Nations Educational, Scientific and Cultural Organization) Concerto was
Representative List of the Intangible Cultural Heritage of performed by Yin
Humanity, making it the first item of the world intangible cultural Chengzong, its
heritage in Hong Kong. Chinese music is an integral part of primary Comp;oser
Chinese opera. Over the years, the Orchestra has contributed and first performer.
to preserving and promoting Chinese opera through organizing
concerts featuring Chinese opera.

28.6.2008 JE M A B Tr#ReT (T0N) B
28.6.2008 Performance is sponsored by ICBC (Asia)




ERk#MHKCO
Yo-Yo Ma & HKCO

Bl B 44 PR S R R BE B A
The debut performance of Yo-Yo Ma and HKCO

B ARER R R ELENITR T AMEF - R EBLESFIEZNERE
MFXEFTAENARERRM(ERS) BEEASEESE -

The world premier of the HKCO commissioned work Zhuang Zhou's
Dream by renowned composer Zhao Jiping was performed by Yo-Yo

Ma and HKCO at the New Vision Arts Festival. The performance won
broad acclaim.

B —BREAMZARLTREGLENELER - 252EET) -
BEYeE  CGEMETD

Ma gave audience a surprise by performing with the HKCO Eco-Gehu at Encore.




Bh&( 4T

Encouraging New Works

SR =N

Hong Kong Composers Series
VAt X B kS R ERER A L ER TR e

Thematic concert to acknowledge the contribution of Hong Kong composers to the local and inter-
national music circle

7RIS
Law Wing-fai

| Richard Tsang

& it 2 iy 86 - ¢ o P B & W
Hong Kong Arts Festival - Music about China Series

AR BEYERR T R 21 1 A0 R R 3 4 9 R L SRR o
An annual occasion that all music lovers who want to catch the latest development trends in
Chinese music composition must attend.

X R L R e R R S
~ Guo Wenijing’s World of Chinese Music -

Lk -
it iy




& i1 # 5k st &l
Cadenzas of Hong Kong

B 5 2 0 5 s W o %o o e O O R oo R o o R P Ry O K D o R
Erly 06 . 0 O 2 R 0 e 0 25 0 A7 2 B I A A ey 0 1

Twenty Hong Kong composers were invited by the Orchestra to write new works that
should illustrate how they are inspired by the individual character and life of the 18
districts of Hong Kong. Their works were world-premiered in the Orchestra’s con-
certs. The aim of this scheme is to encourage the creativity of Hong Kong composers
in Chinese orchestral composition.

BTEREFANE RN A

EE = (FEER
HERHIIRENEE B (REE) BE%
BB — KB P LR IRR En R K IE
EBIE & HKCO I EPIRH FRE
EZ15ME & HKCO |l S 2R =85

Works premiered in the year under Cadenzas of Hong Kong

Concert Music Composer
The Poignant Sounds of the Huqgin — Temple Rituals .
Rich T

Liu Changfu & Liu Yang (Ceremonial Ode) ichard Tsang
Painting with Chinese Music — . . .

Ph Law Wing-f
A Galactic Vision of Law Wing-fai Flowing Phantasm aw Wing-fal
Koi Ming-fai & HKCO Il Fishing at Night in Tuen Mun Li Ka-wa
Koi Ming-fai & HKCO Il The Digital Hub Alfred Wong

ZARES

Commissioned Works and Arrangements

2 g 7 v X ) 1 e (0 G 7 O e O R b o O O o R O
- Y 2 1 % 25 B O 0 W 27 Y

Commissioned composers to compose works which were world-premiered and were
presented in the concerts dedicated to Hong Kong composers. In the year under re-
view, a total of 27 new commissioned works and arrangements.
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Popularizing Chinese Music through Education

[PLEDIY—E S % &5t 3l
Chinese Music DIY - HSBC Music Education Programme
SR S B LAY - EL G M el I A e R A
Music Leadership Certificate Workshops, Interactive

concerts and a musical scores library for all schools in
Hong Kong to use for free.

BEER  BLRTEEES
Title Sponsor : The Hongkong Bank Foundation

SHREFPEER  SHLFPEBRERM
Hong Kong Children Chinese Orchestra, Hong Kong
Junior Chinese Orchestra and Instrumental Classes

R R G Rl B R R BAERISE ) o At A 5 4 I v
SR AR BBl 1] 5 N DAY R A B o

A platform for members of the Hong Kong Children Chinese Orchestra, the Hong Kong
Junior Chinese Orchestra and the Instrumental Classes to show what they have learned
over the past year, and also allows them to gain stage experience with their teachers, the
professional musicians of the HKCO.




ZE5ZiE - WNRKRAERESES

Outreach concerts and guided appreciation concerts
BWREZIR - BEFEF LGRS ITH ~ ROKE - &

P ~ BRI S5 i 72 Dt 2 1 5 T A JRe 4

Back stage tours, guided appreciation concerts were organized and
outreach concerts were held at schools in remote districts like Yuen
Long, Tin Shui Wai, Tuen Mun, Tung Chung etc..

BB ZHk

Backstage tour

Chinese Music Alivest &l
Chinese Music Alive Scheme

R ZHEA LR E TR RBEEHEHW
SPEE -~ WERBREEBES -

Invited the under-privileged groups to attend free
concerts, backstage tours, talks and instrumental
classes.

Zh  REEEIRRES

Sponsor : Kerry Group Kouk Foundation Ltd




| B B2 %

Social Commitments

9 1t H o 36 B = 5t 8

Music for Love Scheme

B AR A 5 B s S BE R S - RS AL IR
WA AR A R i -

Being concerned about the importance of cultural life
to the under-privileged groups, the Orchestra organized
outreach concerts for charitable organizations.

BRESE Rnes

Care for the Elderly Cash Coupons

SR REVBICREEZ B H > i RAERFHEOR I ol 484 2 B ULiE ) -
EREFEEEHFERREEmMENY - WRFEHSHFTBRMEEEM -

To encourage the elderly to enjoy cultural In order to enable citizens to continue their
programmes after their retirement, the participation in cultural activities amidst
Orchestra increased the ticket discount for economic downturn, cash coupons were issued to
the elderly from 50% to 60%. the audience for their use in purchasing tickets.

e AN

Music all over Hong Kong 18 Districts
A 8 % I i R B 36 O e ok B v 4 T i P

Outreach concerts held in various districts for Hong Kong citizens
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| B Aa
Training up Professionals in Chinese Music

BASIRRXK

b @ 3 1k 5t &l

Enthusiastic support from

local academic institutions

Institution Partnership Programme

B AERRBRHE - EIHMEMRAMIL  BERSBRESTE -

To organize master classes by composers, talks and open
rehearsals etc for students of local academic institutions.

ERRERBANZENBE 2EE2BLETRREH
Students of the Art & Cultural Education Programme of
Hong Kong Baptist University attending rehearsal and
appreciation sessions of HKCO.

15 5l 7% 1h & 3% A il
SHRBEBHSREBMEBE

Training of professional local talent

HKAPA Professional Orchestral Internship Programme
HEBEBRAZRAPFTERAMESNHPLAT 20068 F
£ BRNEFERPRILERE  TSOASNBERH
A collaboration programme between the Orchestra and
The Hong Kong Academy of Performing Arts to nurture
local talents in Chinese music. Every year since 2005,
the Academy sends its students to the Orchestra for
internship. A total of 8 students have finished their
intership.

REFEFEERAFEEP LML
Yan Huichang hosting a master class
on conducting for students of HKAPA.

RUABLALYELFRTAEF AL G HB U T 2R
ABEBLBENRY  GRALRLARAMBENRSGHS
SRLRHUEIPREERUTBER AR -

GO TAEMIEE

HHEOLARREILERRA TR LG RGBELIUNGLLERTL
BRAXDAREY - Oldo ! K MRBAXRRORE VL EUTRTT o

BEREARRRE  SXEREMEEELE (T FAE TR LEKE
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Outreach Activities involving the community

H R O A B
- L’#&ﬁ!ﬂétﬂl}# F. ] ey Venue Partnership Scheme
e fe - 200875 1 [ Jg h 45 i

Hong Kong International Festival of Chinese Orchestras
A 48 vl S I LA o S 1 6

Jointly organised by Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra and
Hong Kong Chinese Instrumental Music Association

cEaTRAm LR nEEE 4T B aemes 2
15002 A 25m
s REEAA O ERE - R rEgpwgerl1435

E?K El

e BITEIRRMiRIE

e Gathered 47 Chinese orchestras in the territory and
around the world with over 1 ,500 performers

o Performed 14 concerts at the Hong Kong Cultural Centre
Concert Hall, civic centres, university and shopping malls

® Conducted a round-table discussion

HEIBHEELT

Daytime Educational Concerts

FERABTDHRERBBEEN P LS LEAREEENZTLRES - /N EBETMAFE P LS LERE AR 2
BEZEMRA -

The objectives of organising these concerts were to groom a new generation of audience, to introduce to the students
and their parents the Hong Kong Cultural Centre as Hong Kong'’s premier venue for music performances, and to help
students understand more about appreciating orchestral music at the Hong Kong Cultural Centre Concert Hall.
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Chinese Instrumental Festival
H 2001 4 L 4% 8] 49 A B i 4 25 B0 15 B - Bl 2 i RIW) 4% - B AU TH A O LAl gk o

The Orchestra has organized Chinese instrument festivals every year ever since 2001. Over the
years, a total of 3 Guinness Records are being made with the participation of local community

Eg ]
Hong Kong Drum Festival

BN JETE N 224 5

The 6th Hong Kong Synergy 24 Drum Competition
LEREBEEREMLSHNEESM  2MEFEBH4ESLE  BFRS

i

BB AE353M 44,000 AR ° BERVENERERBERALTZM

The Orchestra invited organizations from Hong Kong and other ~Continued to invite participation for the elderly
parts of the world to participate in the competition. Participants category and people with disabilities

were aged between 4 and 84. Over the years, the number of

participating teams has accumulated to 353, with a total number

of 4,000 participates.

G AN

Hong Kong Dulcimer Festival

AEREERBEL TS BERE
To provide platform for amateur Yangqin Exhibition

music groups to perform

BESHY
Yanggin Workshop
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Research in Diversified Subjects
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[BEREMEMsTE TREMAHN) EREBEMEB IR
HKCO Eco-hugin Series
Awarded the “‘Hong Kong Awards for Environmental Excellence-““Class of
Good” Productwise Label”.
goobooooooooooooooboobOoobOoboobooboboooooobOooDbDOoOobOobObOobbOobObOOoOO0oOoDOoOoDOD

ooooo

The HKCO Eco-Hugin Series is an important product of the creative cultural industry in Hong Kong. They have been created out
of the marriage of the preservation of traditions and innovative ideas; representatives of our unyielding spirit to innovate in order
to reach the twin goal of environmental protection and artistic excellence.

\|
4
(A

HKCO1%! & 4 HKCO1%! — #4 HKCOZ! e #f HKCOZ! (IRAEHIR)EHA  HKCO1EL (IR AE i)
HKCO1 Gaohu HKCO1 Erhu HKCO Zhonghu HKCO Gehu (Membrane- K& #
Sound Box Dual HKCO1 Bass Gehu

(Membrane-Sound

Resonance Model)




[ I B XK E

Cultural Ambassador of Hong Kong

KEERNBEREZELASELEEREMEGRE » R T D

B 3& i 58 @

Invited to perform, host music workshop and cultural exchange activities at
various famous venues in the world and at international festivals

YouTube?2 % 4% JH]
YouTube Symphony

LEESRRTEAN EE AR YouTube™ 2 B2 B R HEBIEX A EEZER [YouTubeRELE] - &
BB EH 2 Eroicaff B MBS 4R - WML BIERR AR -

The Orchestra is being invited as a Partner of the YouTube Symphony, the first internet symphony
orchestra in the world. The Orchestra has re-arranged and performed the Chinese orchestral version of
Tan Dun’s Eroica and have provided master classes conducted by HKCO virtuosi to be broadcasted on
the YouTube Symphony page.

rh g RIS 1 &
China (Shenzhen) Arts Festival of ICIF

BEFEMERBIRYI UL REFL2EFE (RY) XEHgE
MTEmEL - 829 [HFP] TEELs -

The Orchestra was invited by the Hong Kong Arts Development
Council and Shenzhen Municipal Bureau of Culture to present
“Hong Kong Day” thematic concert in the China (Shenzhen)
International Cultural Fair.

WM EHEH B

Educational Performance in Macau

BEMFERFIFNTRERNBEESFREE  2NHES
B [ mIkEL » HEHRL] -

Education and Youth Affairs Bureau of Macau invited the
Orchestra to present a series of Chinese music appreciation
concerts for their secondary students after the success of the
series held last year.

2 [RkELS « KAETL] MRMBLESEE

B HESR
=y 3 >
H @@%ﬂ(ﬁ\iﬁfﬁf H %@Zﬁﬁ Students who have attended the appreciation
Qinghai International Musical Journey on Water and Life concerts performed by HKCO in Macau visited

the Orchestra’s rehearsal.
REEESEEARBNEENEBEEITNE2 NS BRIF/KEL S 4L
ZIRE2008tERPAFEN ML R AT EEL S 2 4E -
The first orchestra being invited by the Qinghai Provi
Government to perform at Qinghai International Mu
Water and Life, a Special Concert for World Deserti
Prevention Day 2007 at the side of Yellow River.
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Statement on Corporate Governance
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BEAFGHOON0 EERRHETOVESD DMODEHSTESOUEEYHMEC BMRE T EEED Emet
EE R ETEMEBRMEXENBD FOFAEESERNEDINE0 EESREINEEREMABC EFSEHNEFS
0 1 R R € 8 [ B8 0 69 B K B ) 3 (9

KEEEEXRESRD

B THE W
TREB LR 1AM S 20094
HR®BRIELT xR 20094
(20084 10 522 A #2 5| T /&)
PREGIZE £ BlEE 20094
(20084 10 522 A2 5|+ /&)
BR K ZE R EHEWE 20104
(2008410522 A #5757 2E)
PBRIEEE LT BE 20104
B LE B=E 20104
(BFFZA(E)
REBEIIZM BE 20104
PR % R 5 B BE 20094
EHREREE BE 20104
(2008410522 AEFTZ (T)
TRBEE BE 20104
(20084 10522 AEFTZ (T)
FEEBZ L BE 20104
(20084 10 522 A % FE %)

BED BERGBETERREEEERFED E20086 102280
HEETTEABEESBIERED E2008810F 228
BB AEESEED 200801002286

EESMBEMSEE

EEgOE6HEERNED EOMEEREC EEEFMEDEE B REEMEBMEBED FERAGRERSEER R
SEXRBECEERDEREEOEREEDO0 BERITERNERADERERS XEDNBREREEEREDR
SEEERAEC FEPFFEEGRAA0 EREEPFFEAERAGVNEEFEEAXFERERDIE0 EEREB
BEEERC B RED AENERENEEAED HERANEEEERANETFC ADFEBDE R mEMEEE
HOTREEREE
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HEEY% (HERE)
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The Council

Profile of the Council

At the date of this report, the Council currently consists of eleven Members. All Council Members are non-
executives and are independent. Their diverse backgrounds are essential to bring to the Orchestra a wide
range of experience and expertise from various sectors of the local community and balance the interests of
all stakeholders. The Council is the highest decision making body and it meets regularly to review present
policies and formulate future decisions.

The Council consists of the following members:

Position Expiry of Term of Office

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry Chairman 2009
Dr Carlye W L Tsui Vice Chairman 2009
(Elected on 22 October 2008 as Vice Chairman)

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua Vice Chairman 2009
(Elected on 22 October 2008 as Vice Chairman)

Prof Chan Wing-wah Hon Secretary 2010
(Elected on 22 October 2008 as Hon Secretary)

Dr Chan Wai-kai Council Member 2010
Mr Chung Shui-ming Council Member 2010
(Appointed by Government)

Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund Council Member 2010
Hon Paul M P Chan Council Member 2009
Mr Paul Y H Yau Council Member 2010
(Appointed by Government on 22 October 2008)

Mr Ricky W K Li Council Member 2010
(Appointed by Government on 22 October 2008)

Ms Helen Wong Council Member 2010

(Elected on 22 October 2008)

Note: Dr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin served the Council as Chairman until 22 October 2008
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna served the Council as Vice Chairman until 22 October 2008
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung served the Council as Council Member until 22 October 2008

Role and Responsibilities of Council

The Council is responsible for overall strategy, implementation and delegation of policy; approval of annual and
special budgets; approval of artistic direction; approval of human relations matters; and a review of the Orchestra’s
performance. The Council also monitors the strategic direction, financial status and progress of the Orchestra’s
subsidiaries: Hong Kong Children Chinese Orchestra Limited, Hong Kong Junior Chinese Orchestra Limited, Hong
Kong Young Chinese Orchestra Limited and HKCO Orchestral Academy Limited. The Council bears the ultimate
responsibility for the management of the Orchestra through close monitoring, strategy formulation, decision-making
and provision of guidance. Day-to-day operation of the Orchestra is delegated to the Artistic Director and Executive
Director jointly who are accountable to Council.
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Committees of the Council

The Council has established four Committees to enhance greater efficiency, each having clearly-defined terms of
reference to focus on specialized spheres of work and report to the Council at regular meetings. Where appropriate,
the Committees make decisions on areas within their own authority to enhance efficient execution of policies and
strategies.

[ N N |

Finance and Marketing Human Resources Nomination
Audit Committee Committee Committee Committee
|
{ |
Artistic Director Executive Director

Meetings and Attendance of the Council

To ensure the Council receives adequate and timely information to oversee the activities of the Orchestra,
the Council and Committee meetings are held regularly on a bi-monthly or half-yearly basis or as required in
case of emergency or for any special situation. During the year under review there were seven meetings held
and the average attendance rate was 78%. The Artistic Director, Executive Director and representatives from
the Home Affairs Bureau (HAB) attend the Council Meetings.

Except for those meetings convened under emergency or exceptional cases, Council and Committee

meetings are conducted in accordance with the following procedure:

e The Executive Director formulates meeting schedules of the Council and the Committees on a yearly basis
and submits such meeting schedules to every participant of the meetings, including representatives of
the HAB, six months prior to the first meeting date of the year;

e The Orchestra sends a notice of meeting to every participant of the meeting two weeks prior to the
meeting date. Such notice sets out details such as the meeting time, location and agenda;

e Meeting documents are delivered to every participant of the meeting, one week prior to the meeting date,
for review and preparation;

e The Orchestra prepares the minutes after each meeting and submits them to every participant of the
meeting for review;

e The reviewed and revised minutes of the meeting are put forward at the next meeting for approval.



Frequency of Meetings and Attendance Statistics

. Finance. ) T Marketing Nomination
Council Aud_lt Resources Committee  Committe
Committee Committee
?//L?/e;irgggg?t\éigﬁlce / Average number ’ ° ° > 2
of persons) (78% / 10)  (96% / b) (83% / 5) (79% / 4) (70% / 4)
Attendance rate % (Number of times)

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry+ *86% (6) N/A 67% (2) 33% (1) *100% (2)
Dr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin+ #100% (4)  100% (3) N/A N/A #100% (2)
Dr Carlye W L Tsui 100% (7) 80% (4) *100% (2) N/A 100% (2)
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna+ 75% (3) #100% (3) N/A 100% (2) N/A
Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua 86% (6) 100% (5) N/A N/A N/A
Prof Chan Wing Wah + 33% (1) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung+ 50% (2) N/A #100% (3) 50% (1) N/A
Dr Chan Wai-kai 100% (7) N/A 40% (2) *100% (5) N/A
Mr Chung Shui-ming 43% (3) N/A N/A N/A 0% (0)
Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund 86% (6) N/A 100% (5) N/A N/A
Hon Paul M P Chan 29% (2) N/A N/A N/A N/A
Mr Paul Y H Yau+ 67% (2) N/A 100% (2) N/A N/A
Mr Ricky W K Li+ 100% (3)  *100% (2) N/A 100% (3) N/A
Ms Helen Wong+ 67% (2) 100% (2) N/A 67% (2) N/A
Mr Yan Huichang HubertA 100% (7) N/A 80% (4) 60% (3) N/A
Ms Chin M W CelinaA 100% (7) 100% (5) 100% (5) 100% (5) 50% (1)

*

S+ %

Chairman of Council / Sub-committee

Chairman of Council / Sub-committee (until 22 October 2008)
Attendance is calculated against the number of meetings organized during the period of service
By invitation, non Council Member or Committee Member

Remuneration and Development of the Council and Senior Administration Staff

All directors of the Council serve the Orchestra on a pro bono publico basis. The remuneration of senior
administration executives is determined by the Council.

Remuneration of top 3-tiers annual salaries is analyzed as follows:

No. of Persons

2009 2008
Up to HK$300,000 6 3
HK$300,001 to HK$700,000 4 3
Above HK$700,000 1 1
11 7

Remark: The current reporting on the staff remuneration of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is subject to further
changes after consultation with the Funding Committee for the Performing Arts and Government and updates will be
provided in the version on the Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra’s website.
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Terms of Office

According to the Articles of Association of the Orchestra, the Council consists of no less than six members and
no more than twenty members. At least two-thirds of the Council are elected by Members of the Orchestra and no
more than one-third is appointed by the Government of the HKSAR, the funding body. The term of office of elected
Council Members is two years and retire at each AGM, with eligibility to be re-elected, to allow for turnover and
continuity.

The Council has a nomination process whereby new candidates identified for election to the Council are formally
proposed for consideration at a Council meeting, on the basis of the candidate’s professionalism, willingness to
dedicate time and effort to Council work, commitment to good corporate governance, appreciation and support of
the Orchestra and the mission of the Orchestra, network connections and other potential value to be added to the
Orchestra. Donation to the Orchestra is not the sole consideration for appointment to the Council.

The Committees

Finance and Audit Committee

The Finance and Audit Committee monitors the financial performance and reporting, budgetary control, accounting
policies and internal control. The Orchestra presents monthly financial statements to the Committee for its
independent review before endorsement. The Committee met bi-monthly, there were five meetings during the year
under review and the average attendance rate was 96%.

Chairman
Mr. Ricky W K Li
Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna (serving up to 22 October 2008)

Members

Dr Carlye W L Tsui

Dr Chan Kam-biu Joshua

Ms Helen Wong

Dr Wong Tin-yau Kelvin (serving up to 22 October 2008)
Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director) (By Invitation)

Human Resources Committee

The Committee advises on human resources development policies, manpower planning, staff training and
development, staff appraisal, and remuneration. The Committee met bi-monthly, there were five meetings during the
year under review and the average attendance rate was 83%.

Chairman
Dr Carlye W L Tsui
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung (serving up to 22 October 2008)

Members

Dr Chan Wai-kai

Ir Leung Kwong-ho Edmund

Mr Paul Y H Yau

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry (serving up to 22 October 2008)
Mr Yan Huichang Hubert (Artistic Director) (By Invitation)
Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director) (By Invitation)



Marketing Committee

The Committee formulates policies and marketing strategies and monitors marketing, sales and fund-raising. The
Committee met bi-monthly, there were five meetings during the year under review and the average attendance rate
was 79%.

Chairman
Dr Chan Wai-kai

Members

Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry

Mr Ricky W K Li

Ms Helen Wong

Ms Chiu Lai-kuen Susanna (serving up to 22 October 2008)
Mr Davie T P Au-yeung (serving up to 22 October 2008)

Mr Yan Huichang Hubert (Artistic Director) (By Invitation)
Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director) (By Invitation)

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee advises on the criteria for selection of Council Members, recommends the best skill-mix
scenario for the Council and reviews potential candidates nominated by Members of the Orchestra. The Committee
held meetings as required, there were two meetings during the year under review and the average attendance rate
was 70%.

Chairman
Mr Lai Hin-wing Henry
Dr Wong Tin-yau Kevin (serving up to 22 October 2008)

Members

Dr Carlye W L Tsui

Mr Chung Shui-ming

Ms Celina M W Chin (Executive Director) (By Invitation)
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Stakeholders Relations

The Council met regularly for brainstorming ideas in its review of the existing strategies and performances as well
as to discuss the formulation of future strategies. Representatives from the HAB attended all Council meetings as
Observers. Various kinds of communication channels were opened up to all members of the Orchestra. Harmonious
working relations were sustained to ensure that different parties worked together for the best interests of the
Orchestra. As a non-profit-distributing organization providing service to the people of Hong Kong, public relations
were also emphasized, by providing up-to-date information on the activities of the Orchestra in a user-friendly
manner.

Regular reports and documents were submitted and published to enhance disclosure on the operation and financial
status of the Orchestra. Such reports and documents include:

Overseers Reports Frequency
Sponsors and stakeholders | Annual report yearly
HAB Funds application yearly
Audited financial statements yearly
Self-evaluation and assessment report and yearly
a year-end report
Review on number, ranking and remuneration of staff yearly
The Council Annual financial budget yearly
Orchestral season programme plan yearly
Procedure Manuals yearly
Audited financial statement yearly
Unaudited financial statements monthly
Concert summary bi-monthly
Guest list of complimentary tickets bi-monthly
Publicity Report bi-monthly
The Public and Audience Season brochure yearly
Posters and leaflets of concerts 4 weeks before concert
FoHKCO Newsletter monthly
Website continuous update
E-news continuous update
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Brief Biodata of Council Members and Principal Executives

B3
FEFE S 2R
Chairman
Mr Henry LAI

BlEfE
BREBEBITAFHL
BBS MBE

Vice Chairman

Dr Carlye TSUI BBS
JP MBE

HEERMEBMAaBA  BEBEBRAEA  PEZEAFTA  BRERA « FEEME
B REMBANGHESHNEERSEREMEN  BEEFETERGER  BERMLE
BEHAZE  BEAMEGNEZBEERE  MEARAREBB26F : FBELAFAREBER
B AARETERE BAERERRBEARQAREMRARER  KERBRERZE
B BAAZMLMARBUIATERRIIFNTES  PEZEAEABELEELNE
KE : BEEBERAEAMELEFTIRZERERE  HERHBEE -

Partner, P C Woo & Co; Notary Public; China-Appointed Attesting Officer; Civil Celebrant
of Marriages; admitted as a solicitor in Hong Kong, England and Wales and the state
of Victoria, Australia; Fellow, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Member, Solicitors
Disciplinary Tribunal; Member, The Consent Committee of The Law Society of Hong Kong;
practising in the legal field for more than 26years; Director, Ebenezer School and Home
for the Visually Impaired; Supervisor, Lock Tao Secondary School; Honorary legal adviser,
Hong Kong Juvenile Diabetes Association Limited; Member, The Hospital Governing
Committee of Tseung Kwan O Hospital; Non-executive director and independent non-
executive director of listed companies in Hong Kong; Member, Association of China-
Appointed Attesting Officers Limited Disciplinary Tribunal Panel; Member, Notaries Public
Disciplinary Tribunal Panel; Member of Hunan Committee of the China People’s Political
Consultation Conference.

EAESTECTHRAY  BEEEEe T IEMBe  KEEKESEFREE &5
EWMEATIMERARQAAGAER BB LFEESEE AFEMHLT AP LEESE -
2001-2006 =S X/F : BFEZERE  BEEEEKEERNZE  AMKAKBRET
BR#E  RESFHeRTPRABENEE  REEKSEE (FEHE) 8lgxR 0 817 .
1981 F BB+ RELETF  1902FFBHFHEMNBEMRAL - 1997 FEBERFTHEEE)
E - 2003FERMEFALEE - 2007 FHEEHT KEKen Goulding&BA L [EHEFEHF L]
ﬁ °

Chief Executive Officer, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Fellow: The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors, Hong Kong Institution of Engineers, British Computer Society;
Deputy Chairman, Hong Kong Internet Registration Corporation Limited; Member,
Board of Review (Inland Revenue Ordinace); Justice of the Peace; Council Member and
2001-2006 Council Chairman, Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra; Former District Councillor,
Wan Chai District Council; Former Member, Boardcasting Authority; Councillor, Former
Urban Council & Provisional Urban Council; Former Chairman, The Outstanding Young
Persons’ Association, Chung Ying Theatre Company; Founder Chairman, British Computer
Society (Hong Kong Section); Awards: 1981 Awardee of Ten Outstanding Young Persons
Selection, 1992 IT (Information Technology) Achiever of the Year, 1997 Member of the
Most Excellent Order of the British Empire, 2003 Bronze Bauhinia Star, 2007 the Middlesex
University Ken Goulding Prize for the most outstanding Professional Doctorate.
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BlEF
PREBIZIE T
Vice Chairman
Dr Joshua CHAN

..d

BEBWE
BROKEHIR A Tt
Honorary Secretary
Prof Chan Wing Wah JP

.A | .
EE
BInAKFH L GBS
Member

Mr Chung Shui Ming
GBS JP

BREZEFHER  RZRRBAERMETRARMBHNEREICOZE  EBARBEHEK 1
BEMLETFEE  BBFMEBEIE  DMFHFXFABRERE BERELREKR
ARHREZEENXE -

Prolific Hong Kong composer with over 160 compositions and arrangements written for
various media in diversified styles; Associate Professor, University of Hong Kong where
he teaches composition and electronic music; Chairman, Hong Kong Composers' Guild;
Chairman, Asian Composers League; Member, Programme and Development Committee,
Leisure and Cultural Services Department.

BEANBREZXECERABENRBEMPOLE  NMEXSZHREZARBELEL  BEEAR
MERZEGEEIE BEELESTLEE TERES El%%%%ﬁ%’ % {EH 82 7Y EA [
BRTEERRGELE  FEEZEE REVES

Head, Centre for Creative & Performing Arts, HKU SPACE; Doctor of Music, University of
Toronto; Chairman, The Composers & Authors Society of HK; Music Director, HK Oratorio
Society; Honorary Music Director, HK Children's Choir; Advisor to HK Philharmonic
Orchestra, China Broadcasting Chinese Orchestra, LCSD, etc.

o

BEGHMAGEREE  ERSMLETRARBUIATES  AEERTARRESR]
B REBEEEREGZE  NAEREMSLE  MEBFANTRETHREHKE ' BIE
ARITHRERBALMESERTREAR  2BRIHEE  BEEZLBERZET
fE o

Fellow Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; Independent
Non-executive Director of several listed companies in Hong Kong; Former Chairman,
Council of the City University of Hong Kong; Former Member, Hong Kong Housing
Authority; Former Chairman, Hong Kong Housing Society; Former Member, HKSAR
Executive Council; Former Chief Executive, HKSAR Government Land Fund Trust;
Member, National Committee of the Chinese People's Political Consultative Conference;
Vice Chairman, Board of Governors of the Hong Kong Philharmonic Orchestra.
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Member
Dr Chan Wai Kai

A

BE
REFEAF ML
Member

Ir Edmund K H Leung
OBE JP

W, J=

B=E
BRIXEZFB KN F4#T
Member

Hon Paul M P Chan
MH JP

EEREABMBERIREH/ NEHERE  ERREEHRE  BAEREVERZS
BlEE BBV FEMERSE  BEEFEQEARGE  HARKEEBRAFEHEEZES

FREAMLEZE -

Secondary School Principal of Hong Kong Baptist University Affiliated School Wong Kam
Fai Secondary and Primary School; Council Member, Hong Kong Academy of Performing
Arts; Vice-chairman, Hong Kong Direct Subsidy Scheme Schools Council (DSSSC);
Director, Hong Kong Adventure Corps; Fellow, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors;
Member of Information Session Division, Committee on Home School Co-operation, EDB.

FELEEEARARESHAKE  EARSEEREERAKE  URHAALTESTF 17
BEFRZESLZE s HMBEZECRE  UIKERREF®R Jéﬂazf EBTIEmME
EHER EHABEZERAKE  BEEMTERFEERE REERTIEE2TEHH
AIEE o

Managing Director, Hsin Chong Construction Group Ltd; Board Member, Airport Authority
Hong Kong; Chairman, Energy Advisory Committee; Board Member, Administrative
Appeal; Member, The Town Planning Board; Chairman, Process Review Committee,
Financial Reporting Council; Former President, The Hong Kong Institution of Engineers;
Former Council Member, Lingnan University; Former Vice Chairman, The Hong Kong
Council of Academic Accreditation; Former Chairman, Hong Kong Branch of The
Institution of Mechanical Engineers.

ERERSIMEBAMERIBNIE, BESHMASHERAFFARSIMASERE
DEREIE, BEPXAZNRERNBELEBRTABNEFOHE, FERBMEREDRS
BREEESERBEXRBAEAZEGNIFE  TERBBARZEGNESEESEE,;
[AEZR] TRELEE R w&%erymwiﬁ%EﬁWﬁ&%%%a W 20074
WERERKFEL -

Chairman of PCP CPA Limited; Former President of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (HKICPA) and former Chairman of ACCA-HK; Adjunct Associate
Professor of The Chinese University of Hong Kong and the City University of Hong Kong;
Chairman of the Legal Aid Services Council and the Professional Services Advisory
Committee of HKTDC, member of the Strategic Development Commission and the
Beat Drugs Fund Association; Chairman of Friends of Caritas and a past Chairman of
Breakthrough Limited; Awarded a Medal of Honour by the HKSAR government in July 2006
and was appointed as Justice of the Peace in July 2007.
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Member

Mr Paul Y H Yau MH

itk
FEBEAE
Member

Mr Ricky W K Li

BE

wmEBLL
Member

Ms Helen Wong

BEREBEHMGEBELRREK  HERRELREACEABHEZEGLIR  BARGARRE
HEBRNRREMHBEBENBAZEGLR  BEARBHERRERIKHABIFZAZES
28 BREZEPNTZESIE  BEEMERPHUELMER  ERUEBEHERMHE
MEPLFEBIARE - EEHELRBIBLRIZEL)FAREGERE TEDHEHEUITE
= BERRABEEE  BRERBABHSEN  OERELFABEBENTEZESZRER
1999 FRBEEERHRBTREHE -

Principal of Hong Kong Chinese Christian Churches Union Logos Academy; Chairman, Committee
on Gifted Education, Curriculum Development Council (CDC), Education Bureau; Chairman, Early
Childhood Education Division, Teacher Education Division Advisory Committee, School of Continuing
Education, Hong Kong Baptist University; Member, School-University Partnership Advisory
Committee, Faculty of Education, The University of Hong Kong; Chairman, Executive Committee,
Towards A Better School Movement; Advisor, Arts Education, Hong Kong Arts Development Council;
Researcher, Minban Jiaoyu Yanjiu Zhongxin, Guangdong Institute of Education; Member, Associate
Degree Programme (Music) Advisory Committee, The Hong Kong Institute of Education; Executive
Director, New Life Schools Incorporation; Conductor, Hong Kong Principals, Choir; Advisor, Hong
Kong Treble Choirs' Association; Member, Executive Committee, The Association of Sai Kung
Children & Youth Choir; Awardee of Medal of Honour in 1999, HKSAR Government.

ESEREBERATEBKES UKAE - EEREARAFES  RERKFLAR A
EREBGMAGERGE  RYIERERARBULIEATES - RIITHEISIER)BRAF
EENBEATRECEXHEVEEXRLEGRITEERE -

Executive Director and Chief Financial Officer of GDH Limited and Director of Guangdong
Investment Limited. Fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Also, holding position as independent Non-
executive Director of Shenzhen Investment Limited and Director of Shenzhen City Airport (Group)
Co. Ltd. And, the Vice Chairman of the Financial and Accounting Affairs Steering Committee of the
Hong Kong Chinese Enterprises Association.

R LBESRTERAARRRITELEREHALE  SRHELTHELEE @ RERT - BE
BEEBAEARERTBEN - AERBEAH M A ERIEHIRE RBERITIRG - IBEAKR
PEREBETHIE BEXIHAR/VETSAREEENE YAH [MREZEE| IFE-&
LEEFBHE  EENBFEASHENER - BRNEZE  EERERE -

Managing Director, Global Banking, The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited;
Helen is Managing Director, Global Banking, responsible for relationship management of all major
Hong Kong corporates including red-chips, the HKSAR Government and related entities. Before
joining Global Banking in 2003, Helen headed debt capital markets coverage for the Greater China
region, and was one of the pioneers in the development of the HKD bond market. Helen is a board
member of the Treasury Markets Association and chairs its Finance and Administration Committee.
Helen graduated from the University of Hong Kong. She speaks English, Cantonese and Putonghua.
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Chairman (Until

22 October 2008)

Dr Kelvin WONG

BlEF(2008F 108
22 HERIEF)
MBI/t

Vice Chairman (Until
22 October, 2008)
Ms Susanna CHIU

IR (2008 F HIEE F)
B E R EE
Member (Until

22 October, 2008)
Mr Davie AU-YEUNG

PFRAFFAERQAANITEESREZENLEE s RABRZEBESIREMUITZRESZE &
BEEESIIRELEFEE  AHRTEELE  EEEFHFERTE  REFTTHEY
28 HEEEBERERAABUNTEZLNEZZES TR EFRESTEIHIERA
BB IEHNTEE  PRERBOERARBYIEMITESE ¢ I.T Limited BN IEHITESE
ERBSEERTRESHAZESZE BB ASRHEKBTLENEZESEE K
EAEEE(OECD) N EBARERSZ R OKE  BEXSREEMAR AR TR NLAIER
FTZBEgKE B LEFZE 2/ K E : EBNational Relations Institute® 8 : X
TR M Andrew University T EIEEL  EA BRI AL TIHEREL -

Executive Director and Deputy Managing Director of COSCO Pacific Limited; Chairman
of Corporate Governance Committee, Member of Executive; Deputy Chairman and
Fellow, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Associate Member, Chartered Institute
of Bankers; Member, Hong Kong Securities Institute; Member, Chartered Institute of
Marketing; Independent Non-executive Director and Chairman of the Audit Committee,
China Metal International Holdings Inc; Independent Non-executive Director, Tradelink
Electronic Commerce Limited; Independent Non-executive Director, CIG Yangtze Ports
PLC; Independent Non-executive Director, I.T Limited, Member, China Trade Advisory
Committee of the Hong Kong Trade Development Council, Member, Auditing & Assurance
Standards Committee, Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants; Member,
OECD Asian Corporate Governance Roundtable; Member, Main Board & GEM Listing
Committee of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited; The Board of Review (Inland
Revenue Ordinance); Member, National Investor Relations Institute in the USA; Master of
Business Administrator, Andrews University in Michigan, the USA; Doctor of Business of
Administrator, The Hong Kong Polytechnic University.

NMEEZ)ERARSMERE  EESHNASESE: SFEHMERIAWES R
BRENZRBAHE (BAENEG) AIER - BITFEEMESAMre B HESES » HWH
AEEGRLE  BAEFEEGEE (1991FERE2E [TABELESFLE] -

Senior Vice President, Lee & Fung (Trading) Limited; Council Member, The Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants; President, Institute of Accountants Exchange;
Immediate Past President, Information Systems Audit and Control Association (HK
Chapter); Council Member, Overseas Member Association of the Chinese Institute of
Certified Public Accountants; Member, Antiquities Advisory Board; Member, The Hong
Kong Institute of Directors; Awardee of the Chinese Women of Achievement in the UK in
1991.

23

EREEREERGE MABREESRBLZEGRERZE BB ESEHNTZEEZR
S|

8 BEMBELTRARZEIIFNTES -

Fellow, The Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Treasurer and Council Member, Hong Kong
Committee for UNICEF, United Nations Children Fund; Executive Committee Member,
The Hong Kong Anti-Cancer Society; Independent Non-Executive Director of two listed
companies in Hong Kong.
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BINMEE  HFEEE
M= A L4 BBS
Artistic Director /
Principal Conductor
Mr Yan Huichang
Hubert BBS

'a‘_

I

THARE

EEEL L
Executive Director
Ms Celina M W Chin

_h

R18TFHEEEEXTRER TER —RIEE - B1997F6 AREREARAFLES
gpaes  PR2003F10ABBRARMBERERIEE HARKYLEEEELR - £§ 8
E N EREEENBEEPLE  MNBMNEESESIHBEANER —BEE -
BRIFBARPLEZSIN IS RRFAFRELIKIEE  QIREFRPRIELE - tFS
METLUCBLE RS ERE  FENTLEELLBENTISELES o o
KEBEHBNESLAE BEERK - 2001F98 @  BEEFMFEEAFEZE [2001FL
] ERBARIA (PREREMAL ALY - GE2000F B B2MAERRTIES
B BEEAMBER [EBtE ] FEZEREMER - 2004 F R EREETS B LRR
BREHIR - 2004F  HREFERBEINTRETREERRNEZALEE  RBMNIEEP L
FEERMRE% - R2008F - INAERENETHESER REAETNTZ SRR (BE
) - 2009 BB REERBBLIXNIEBEAREELERL -

Yan Huichang was conferred the title of National Class One Conductor at the First Professional
Appraisal of China in 1987. He was appointed Music Director of the Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra in June 1997. He was retitled Artistic Director and Principal Conductor in October
2003. Yan was a conductor for all professional Chinese orchestras in Beijing, Shanghai, Taiwan,
Singapore and Hong Kong, Yan has won the acclaim of the music circles in China and abroad
for his artistic and conducting talents. In addition to playing an active role on the Chinese music
scene, Yan has also been involved in music of other genres, he has worked with China National
Symphony Orchestra, Philharmonic Orchestra of Beijing Concert Hall, Shenzhen Symphony
Orchestra of China and Russian Philharmonic Orchestra of Moscow. Yan is also actively engaged
in composition and won many awards. Yan was awarded the 'Cultural Medallion (Music)' by the
National Arts Council of Singapore in September 2001. His achievements were simultaneously
documented in The Famous Figures of the Contemporary Arts Circles in China. In 2000, he
was a member of the Hong Kong Council for Academic Accreditation, and an Examiner and
Arts Advisor of the Hong Kong Arts Development Council for Grants. Since 2004, he has been
a Visiting Professor in many music conservatories. Yan was awarded a Bronze Bauhinia Star
(BBS) by the Chief Executive of HKSAR in 2004 in recognition of his remarkable achievements
in Chinese music as well as his efforts in promoting Chinese music. In 2008, he won the Jurors’
Award for Conducting at the 6th China Gold Record Awards - Multi Arts Category. In 2009, Yan
was awarded an Honorary Fellowship by the HKAPA. He was also appointed a Visiting Scholar of
the HKAPA'’s School of Music.

FENENEABREEERLT  AREEXERAREREREUERFAA + TREBIMEZ
EHASMATMREBEHROEXEMTEIIRRE - 1989F MARHHREHE - AUt
NEREAZBEE - EMBME - FESRE FEEREXH  BRSEARBANEET
LERTY > YR2001FEFEBPLERNCEREEZTSZEREETRAE - TBEZEES
BERER  AABMERR (BMTR) B BETLHEF BESER  AAENRE
MEZLCEMTREFARESE NRIRBMERE/MVAZ B (2006) - £RARER * FD
FEABEAMNER REUETHEHEER ZYCERPR  UNEBNMRREMAR EETEL

i =
%"ﬁ_@_aa"

Master of Arts in Strategic Management for Non-Distributing Organisation; holder of
The Hong Kong Institute of Directors Diploma in Company Direction and Professional
Diploma in Corporate Governance & Directorship; graduate of Professional
Programme in Arts Administration organised by UCLA and former USD; joined the
Cultural Services Section of the former Urban Services Department in 1989 and
since then has worked in offices serving the Hong Kong Repertory Theatre, Festival
of Asian Arts, Chinese Music Festival, Hong Kong International Film Festival, Hong
Kong International Arts Carnival and Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra; appointed
the first Executive Director of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited. Fellow, The
Hong Kong Institute of Directors; Arts Advisors (Arts Administration) Hong Kong
Arts Development Council; First Vice Chairman, Hong Kong Chinese Instrumental
Music Association; Member, Consultative Committee on the Core Arts and Cultural
Facilities of the West Kowloon Cultural District, Performing Arts and Tourism Advisory
Group(2006). Rich experience in aspects of corporate governance, directing of
non-profit-distributing organisation, strategic marketing and image building, as well
as event and performing arts business project management.
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Financial Highlights

X i 2 i Distribution of Expenditure - 2008 / 09

B 242 Concert Production Expenses
M A Marketing Expenses

B 55 & 48REB X Payroll and Related Expenses

Il 775 f22% % & A Research and Development Expenses
Hip B E Other Operating Expenses

WA M Distribution of Income - 2008 / 09

B 554 8) Government Subsidy

Fe2e L HMI A Concerts and Other Income

e
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REPORT OF THE COUNCIL MEMBERS

The Council Members present their report and the audited
financial statements of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited (the
"Company") and of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2009.

Principal activities

With effect from 1 April 2001, the Company took over from Leisure
and Cultural Services Department of the Government of the Hong
Kong Special Administrative Region the running of the Hong Kong
Chinese Orchestra.

The Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra is the only professional
Chinese orchestra in Hong Kong and one of the largest and most
renowned of its type in the world. The Company and the Group
present symphonic music based on traditional folk repertoires
and full-scale contemporary compositions. The principal activities
of the Company and of the Group consist of providing Chinese
music programmes of different styles to blend the diverse artistic
expressions and techniques of today with the traditional culture
of China in interpretation of metropolitan life, as well as rendering
promotion, education, research and development of traditional
and modern Chinese music. There were no significant changes in
the nature of the Group's principal activities during the year.

Results

The Group's surplus for the year ended 31 March 2009 and its
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are
set out in the financial statements on pages 50 to 74.

Plant and equipment

Details of movements in the plant and equipment of the Company
and of the Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements.
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Council

The Council Members of the Company during the year and up to
date of this report were:
Lai Hin Wing, Henry
Tsui Wai Ling, Carlye
Chan Kam Biu, Joshua
Chan Wing Wah
Chan Mo Po, Paul
Chan Wai Kai
Chung Shui Ming
Leung Kwong Ho, Edmund
Li Wai Keung, Ricky
Wong Pik Kuen, Helen
Yau Yat Heem, Paul
Au-yeung Tsan Pong, Davie
Chiu Lai Kuen, Susanna
Wong Tin Yau, Kelvin

Chairman)

elected as Vice Chairman on 22 October 2008)
elected as Vice Chairman on 22 October 2008)
elected as Hon Secretary on 22 October 2008)

—~ o~ — —

elected on 22 October 2008)
elected on 22 October 2008)
elected on 22 October 2008)
retired on 22 October 2008)
retired on 22 October 2008)
retired on 22 October 2008)

—~ o~~~ —~ —

In accordance with article 50 of the Company's articles of
association, the Chairman and Vice-Chairmen will retire from
their respective offices and shall be eligible for re-election at the
forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

Council Members' interests

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Company's
Council Members to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.

Council Members' interests in contracts

No Council Members had a significant beneficial interest either
directly or indirectly, in any contract of significance to the
business of the Company to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party during the year.

Auditors

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE COUNCIL
Henry Lai
Chairman
Hong Kong, 23 September 2009
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the members of Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability by guarantee)

We have audited the financial statements of Hong Kong Chinese
Orchestra Limited set out on pages 50 to 74, which comprise the
consolidated and company balance sheets as at 31 March 2009,
and the consolidated statement of income and expenditure, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
cash flow statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Council Members' responsibility for the financial statements

The Council Members of the Company are responsible for the
preparation and the true and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining
internal control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error; selecting and
applying appropriate accounting policies; and making accounting
estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. Our report is made solely to you,
as a body, in accordance with Section 141 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement.
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An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In
making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal
control relevant to the entity's preparation and true and fair
presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Council
Members, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view
of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at
31 March 2009 and of the Group's surplus and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards and have been properly prepared in
accordance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 23 September 2009
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FHEPLEEARA
HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BERAERE T AR Limited by Guarantee)

LAY zEMR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME AND EXPENDITURE
HZ2009%3H31HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2009

TREe BREAS 2009 TEaEe BRES 2008
General  Development A8 Total General  Development 42 Total
Fund Fund Fund Fund

B HKS B HKS  BMHKS BB HKS  BW HKS B HKS
KA
INCOME
Shte RH ME A RA 6,619,890 1,138,561 7,758,451 5,549,055 2,726,374 8,275,429
Income from concerts and other
performances
I2¢/R=4:) 4 53,079,809 - 53,079,809 48,178,000 - 48,178,000

Government subsidy

BRREH 5 4,126,449 16,610 4,143,059 2,140,625 4,528,439 6,669,064
Donations and sponsorships

EHIREZBRA - 2,121,599 2,121,599 - 1,955,594 1,955,504
Revenue from training course

HibgA 6 655,852 47,813 703,665 1,225,100 205,419 1,430,519
Other revenue

64,482,000 3,324,683 67,806,583 57,092,780 9,415,826 66,508,606

X

EXPENDITURE

FHeREER 7 9,597,937 605,775 10,203,712 8,978,789 8,000,768 16,979,557
Concert production costs

HERMEERZ 8 41,502,973 2,058,767 43,561,740 39,637,964 2,084,927 41,722,891
Payroll and related expenses

MEHEERES T 4,513,834 33,795 4,547,629 3,440,764 354,108 3,794,872
Marketing and fund raising
expenses

Hih @R 9 6,975,425 36,764 7,012,189 5,915,750 128,641 6,044,391
Other operating expenses

62,590,169 2,735,101 65,325,270 57,973,267 10,568,444 68,541,711

$Emﬁﬂﬁ/(ﬁﬁ) 10 1,891,831 589,482 2,481,313  (880,487) (1,152,618) (2,033,105)

SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE
YEAR
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HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BEERAER BT AR Limited by Guarantee)

SFEEEBER CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
200993 HA31H 31 March 2009

TEES BHEES 2009 TEES HERES
General  Development B Total General  Development

Fund Fund Fund Fund
BEHKS  BMHKS  BMHKS B HKS B HKS

FRBDRE

NON CURRENT ASSETS

Heez R 13 798,592 - 798,592 792,876 - 792,876
Plant and equipment

i B R

CURRENT ASSETS

JEWUR 3K 15 835,201 - 835,201 328,405 - 328,405
Accounts receivable

B FIE -« e REARUIRK 16 2,151,735 60,942 2,212,677 2,013,425 3,031,294 5,044,719
Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables

BekERRELER 17 14,610,836 4,128,743 18,739,579 12,384,894 2,052,765 14,437,659
Cash and cash equivalents

MENEERE 17,597,772 4,189,685 21,787,457 14,726,724 5,084,059 19,810,783
Total current assets

i ) # 1R

CURRENT LIABILITIES

FETIR R AN fERT & A 18 6,069,428 668,051 6,737,479 5,084,495 2,151,907 7,236,402
Creditors and accrued liabilities

mEHEERE 11,628,344 3,621,634 15,049,978 9,642,229 2,932,152 12,574,381
NET CURRENT ASSETS

SERE 12,326,936 3,621,634 15,848,570 10,435,105 2,932,152 13,367,257
NET ASSETS

=30 12,326,936 3,621,634 15,848,570 10,435,105 2,932,152 13,367,257
RESERVES

FEHBZE Henry Lai % RF¥ Carlye W L Tsui
T /& Chairman BT & Vice Chairman
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HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED

(BERAERE T AR Limited by Guarantee)

GEERZEHR CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
HZ2009%3H31HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2009

20074 A1H
At 1 April 2007

FREAEEE
Deficit for the year

200843 H31H Kk2008F4H1H
At 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008

FEMGRL
Surplus for the year

2009%3H31H
At 31 March 2009

TRES

General Fund
B HKS

11,315,692

(880,487)

10,435,105

1,891,831

12,326,936

BRES

Development Fund

% HKS

4,084,770

(1,152,618)

2,932,152

589,482

3,521,634

4% Total

B HKS

15,400,362

(2,033,105)

13,367,257

2,481,313

15,848,570
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HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BEREREREMEATR Limited by Guarantee)

REBEEL£MEKR CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

HZE2009F3A31HIEFE Year ended 31 March 2009

RERLEEBHZRERE
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

FREMBRR/(BE)
Surplus/(deficit) for the year

WA TR
Adjustments for :

BB A
Interest income
e

Depreciation

JFE W2 i (454 ) /R

(Increase)/decrease in accounts receivable

FRFRIE - RE R E A YR FOR /(3 In)

Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
e RN M e & A (R )/ N

(Decrease)/increase in creditors and accrued liabilities

RELLEH2HRERMA (RH)FEE
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from operating activities

RETHEERE
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

B WF S

Interest received

122 R IR R

Purchases of items of plant and equipment
REREEE 2R (M) MAFE

Net cash (outflow)/inflow from investing activities

REeRERAHAEEBEM/(AD)FE
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REERBANRERERREER

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

REEGERAMBEERERREEE
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

ReRERAHAEEBGHRIN
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

e RIRTTE R
Cash and bank balances

RIEARRIIHBETERB=EA 2 EBERTEHFR
Non-pledged time deposits with original maturity of less than three months
when acquired

RERERHEEE

Cash and cash equivalents

2008

B HEHKS

2,481,313 (2,033,105)

6 ( 162,560) ( 683,588)
10 558,492 656,554
2,877,245  (2,060,139)

( 506,796) 139,210

2,832,042 (2,671,500)

( 498,923) 690,030

4,703,568 (3,902,399)

162,560 683,588

13 ( 564,208) ( 546,232)
( 401,648) 137,356

4,301,920  (3,765,043)

14,437,659 18,202,702

18,739,579 14,437,659

17 15,239,579 3,437,659
17 3,500,000 11,000,000
18,739,579 14,437,659
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FHRPLEEARA
HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BERAERE T AR Limited by Guarantee)

BEAER BALANCE SHEET
200943 HA31H 31 March 2009

ERES TRES ERES
Development { General  Development
Fund Fund Fund
B HKS oL B HKS B HKS
ERBEE
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
MBS Rk 13 798,592 - 798,592 792,876 - 792,876
Plant and equipment
I PNCIE £ 14 7 - 7 6 - 6
Interests in subsidiaries
FRBEERE 798,599 - 798,599 792,882 - 792,882
Total non-current assets
MENEE
CURRENT ASSETS
JFEU R 5K 15 835,201 - 835,201 328,405 - 328,405
Accounts receivable
BRAFIE - Re R ERIRR 16 2,151,735 60,942 2,212,677 2,013,425 3,031,294 5,044,719
Prepayments, deposits and other
receivables
RekERRELIEE 17 14,610,829 4,128,743 18,739,572 12,384,888 2,052,765 14,437,653
Cash and cash equivalents
mEEELE 17,597,765 4,189,685 21,787,450 14,726,718 5,084,059 19,810,777
Total current assets
mEAE
CURRENT LIABILITIES
FES IR XA T 2 A 18 6,069,428 668,051 6,737,479 5,084,495 2,151,907 7,236,402
Creditors and accrued liabilities
RESEEE 11,528,337 3,521,634 15,049,971 9,642,223 2,932,152 12,574,375
NET CURRENT ASSETS
EEFHE 12,326,936 3,621,634 15,848,570 10,435,105 2,932,152 13,367,257
NET ASSETS
#E 12,326,936 3,521,634 15,848,570 10,435,105 2,932,152 13,367,257
RESERVES
FEFEZE Henry Lai %R Carlye W L Tsui
* & Chairman g|F & Vice Chairman
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200943 H31H

2.1
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ZHEBEREMBR - AR BHMKRDIIRBE
LRAEREERRRZEE - HHT#
KAR A FEFIR - WEMBHRERG AL
TUREM - FEIAKEZNEEY -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2009

2.1

CORPORATION INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in Hong Kong on 7 February
2001 with limited liability by guarantee. The liability of the
Members is limited to HK$100 per Member.

The registered office of the Company is located at 7/F,
Sheung Wan Municipal Services Building, 345 Queen's Road
Central, Hong Kong.

During the year, the Group was involved in providing
Chinese music programmes of different styles to blend the
diverse artistic expressions and techniques of today with the
traditional culture of China in interpretation of metropolitan
life, as well as rendering promotion, education, research and
development of traditional and modern Chinese music.

Pursuant to the Government's approval on 14 August
2002, a Development Fund was set up for the funding of
non-subvented activities which fall outside the ambit of
Government subvention and will be used for organising
events and activities to further promote Chinese music.
The General Fund accounts for all Government subvented
activities and the Development Fund accounts for all non-
subvented activities. The Council Members consider that
it is more appropriate to present the financial results and
positions of these funds as separate columns to reflect the
actual results of these funds.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRSs") (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards ("HKASs")
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for government grants which have
been measured at fair value. These financial statements are
presented in Hong Kong dollars, which is also the Group's
functional currency.
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2.2

2.3
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2009

2.2

2.3

IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINAN-
CIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has adopted the following new interpretations
and amendments to HKFRSs for the first time for the current
year's financial statements.

Amendments to HKAS 39
Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement
and HKFRS 7 Financial
Instruments: Disclosures -
Reclassification of

Financial Assets

HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
Amendments

Service Concession
Arrangements

HK(IFRIC)-Int 12

HKAS 19 - The Limit on a
Defined Benefit Asset,

Minimum Funding Requirements
and their Interaction

HK(IFRIC)-Int 14

The adoption of these new interpretations and amendments
has had no significant financial effect on these financial
statements.

IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the new and revised HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial
statements. The Group is in the process of making an
assessment of the impact of these new and revised HKFRSs
upon their initial application. So far, it has concluded that
while the adoption of HKAS 1 (Revised) may result in new
or amended disclosures, the application of these new and
revised HKFRSs are unlikely to have a significant impact on
the Group's results of operations and financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2009

24 XESTHERBE 2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

HReEHEE

BRAEVBERRBEARRRENBARE
E2009F3A3IHLEFEZHBE®REK -
RAFERAKERHEZHB AR NE
2 DRIRRE LR B BRgsAS AR E
EERBEIEBBRESAR - AEBARA
AIZ — IR S REHBEIFERA - B -
FERWEREBEYREAKREBFEZET
LAE3H o

Bt B X F)
MEBARSARARERAERENEBS
FERERL D BITRAFIEF AR AR
FEHEMCERBAARAREORER T
BOHZERZELENMBHRAAXR
HERFE

M QR 2 EED A RELZ BB
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Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 March 2009. The results of
subsidiaries acquired or disposed of during the year
are consolidated from or to their effective dates of
acquisition or disposal, respectively. All income,
expenses and unrealised gains and losses resulting from
intercompany transactions and intercompany balances
within the Group are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity in which the Company, directly
or indirectly, controls more than half of its voting power
or issued share capital or controls the composition of its
Council of the Company; or over which the Company has
a contractual right to exercise a dominant influence with
respect to that entity’s financial and operating policies.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
statement of income and expenditure to the extent of dividends
received or receivable. The Company'’s interests in subsidiaries
are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a) the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries: (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the
Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b) the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (b); or

(d) the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly-controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of employees of the Group, or of any entity that is
a related party of the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2009

2.4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there
is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If such an
indication exists, the Group makes an estimate of the asset's
recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount of an asset is the higher of its fair
value less costs to sell and its value in use. In assessing
value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value of
money and the risks specific to the assets. Where an asset
does not generate cash inflows largely independent of those
from other assets, the recoverable amount is determined
for the smallest group of assets that generates cash inflows
independently (i.e., a cash-generating unit).

An impairment loss is recognised in the statement of income
and expenditure whenever the carrying amount of an asset,
or the cash-generating unit to which it belongs, exceeds
its recoverable amount. The impairment loss is reversed if
there has been a favourable change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount. A reversal of the
impairment loss is limited to the asset's carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised in prior years. The reversal of the impairment
loss is credited to the statement of income and expenditure
in the year in which it arises.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a) contributions from sponsors and donations, on a cash
receipt basis or in the period as specified by the donor;

(b) performance fee, income from concerts and other
programmes, on an accrual basis;

(c) training course income, on an accrual basis;
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(continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

(d) from the sale of souvenirs, when the significant risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred to
the buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(e) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount of
the financial asset; and

(f) membership fees, on a cash receipt basis.

Provision

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can
be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the
balance sheet date of the future expenditures expected to
be required to settle the obligation.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an
item of plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset
to the working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of plant and equipment have
been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance,
is normally charged to the statement of income and
expenditure in the period in which it is incurred. In situations
where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditure
has resulted in an increase in the future economic benefits
expected to be obtained from the use of an item of plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost
of that asset or as a replacement.
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(continued)

Plant and equipment (continued)

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of plant and equipment to its
residual value over its estimated useful life. The principal
annual rates used for this purpose are as follows:

Computer Equipment 33"/3%
Musical Instruments 25%
Furniture and Equipment 33"/3%

Where parts of an item of plant and equipment have
different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
balance sheet date.

An item of plant and equipment is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal or
retirement recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the relevant asset.

Operating leases

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases, net of any incentives
received from the lessor, are charged to the statement of
income and expenditure on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into
the functional currency of the Group using the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Exchange
differences arising from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at the year-end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure.
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(continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group's cash
management.

Financial instruments

(a) Financial assets

The Group's financial assets include accounts
receivable, deposits and other receivables and cash
and cash equivalents and are classified and accounted
for as loans and receivables. Financial assets are
recognised on the trade date.

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables
are initially recognised at fair value and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment allowances. Any change in
their value is recognised in the statement of income and
expenditure.

Derecognition of financial assets occurs when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets expire
or are transferred and substantially all of the risks
and rewards of ownership have been transferred. An
assessment for impairment is undertaken at least at each
balance sheet date whether or not there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired.

Impairment loss on loans and receivables is recognised
when there is objective evidence that the Group will not
be able to collect all the amounts due to it in accordance
with the original terms of the receivables. The amount
of the impairment loss is determined as the difference
between the asset's carrying amount and the present
value of estimated future cash flows.
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(continued)

(b) Financial liabilities

The Group's financial liabilities include creditors.
Financial liabilities are recognised when the Group
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value,
net of transaction costs incurred and subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method. Financial liabilities are derecognised when the
obligation specified in the contract is discharged or
cancelled or expires.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where
there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be received
and all attaching conditions will be complied with. When
the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised as
income over the periods necessary to match the grant
on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to
compensate.

Employee benefits

Paid leave carried forward

The Group provides paid annual leave to its employees
under their employment contracts on a calendar year basis.
Under certain circumstances, such leave which remains
untaken as at the balance sheet date is permitted to be
carried forward and utilised by the respective employees in
the following year. An accrual is made at the balance sheet
date for the expected future cost of such paid leave earned
during the year by the employees and carried forward.

Pension scheme

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the "MPF
Scheme") under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance, for all of its employees. Contributions are made
based on a percentage of the employees' basic salaries and
are charged to the statement of income and expenditure
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group's employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.
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(continued)

Development Fund

Development Fund was established for the funding of
non-subvented activities, which fall outside the ambit of
Government subvention. Development Fund raised funds
from public by soliciting donations and organising Chinese
music related events.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
ESTIMATES

Key sources of estimation uncertainty and critical
judgements in applying the Group's accounting policies
which have a significant effect on the financial statements
are set out below.

Impairment test of assets

The Group determines whether an asset is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the asset. Estimating the value in use requires the
Group to make an estimate of the expected future cash flows
from the asset and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows.

GOVERNMENT SUBSIDY

The Group's Government subsidy represents subsidy of
HK$50,105,000 (2008: HK$48,178,000) from the Government
of the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region (the
"HKSAR") for providing Chinese musical programmes
of different styles of core business. During the year,
supplementary Government subsidies of HK$1,500,000
(2008: Nil) for outbound cultural exchange activities
and HK$1,474,809 (2008: Nil) for the participation in the
Venue Partnership Scheme (the "VPS") were received
from the Government of the HKSAR. Further details of
the use of the subsidies regarding the outbound cultural
exchange activities and VPS are included in note 10 to the
financial statements. There are no unfulfilled conditions or
contingencies relating to these grants.
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5. B KX EB) DONATIONS AND SPONSORSHIPS

EESLENBRREY
Donations and sponsorships for
designated concerts

H i B0 R B Bl
Other donations and
sponsorships

A7 K5 B Company and Group

TREE ERE® 31 March TRES ERES 31 March
General Fund Development 2009 General Fund Development
Fund Fund
P HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS
1,013,272 - 1,013,272 1,655,625 4,525,439 6,181,064
3,113,177 16,610 3,129,787 485,000 3,000 488,000
4,126,449 16,610 4,143,059 2,140,625 4,528,439 6,669,064

6. HftWlt A OTHER REVENUE

ERHLEREREEE
Membership fees from "Friends of
Hong Kong Chinese Orchestra"

RITHSBA

Bank interest income

EELSMEA

Sales of souvenirs

H A
Other income

AR &E&E Company and Group

THRES ERES 31 March THRES ERES 31 March
General Fund Development 2009 General Fund Development 2008
Fund Total Fund Total

B HKS S HKS HKS$ S HKS HBIEHKS HKS$
58,520 - 58,520 53,165 - 53.165
143,646 18,914 162,560 572,061 111,527 683,588
296,218 4,735 300,953 384,042 7,176 391,218
157,468 24,164 181,632 215,832 86,716 302,548
655,852 47,813 703,665 1,225,100 205,419 1,430,519
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7. S8 EEHR CONCERT PRODUCTION COSTS

Al & B Company and Group

TRES BERES 31 March THRES BERES 31 March
General Fund Development 2009 General Development 2008
Fund L4 Fund %% Fund
B HKS B HKS HK$ B HKS

REEE  BHRERBERZME 3,183,322 150,371 3,333,693 2,324,563 2,916,781 5,241,344
Honorariums to guest
conductors, artists and soloists

HmEEHER 341,752 159,340 501,092 347,231 2,376,229 2,723,460
Transportation of musical
instruments

SKEYEROEL IS S 2,349,820 61,525 2,411,345 1,963,930 78,723 2,042,653
Venue rental for rehearsals and
performances

SRRy ERm 909,727 2,789 912,516 1,603,622 18,151 1,621,773
Music scores, tapes and records

HibZHEERA 2,813,316 231,750 3,045,066 2,739,443 2,610,884 5,350,327
Other production costs

9,697,937 605,775 10,203,712 8,978,789 8,000,768 16,979,557

8. #EKXMEMX PAYROLL AND RELATED EXPENSES

A&l & %E Company and Group

TEES BRAS 31 March TEREAS BRAS 31 March
General Fund  Development 2009 General Fund  Development
Fund Fund
B HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS
B4
Artistic
| 29,195,202 1,273,441 30,468,643 27,991,071 1,281,721 29,272,792
Salaries
=l 4,867,570 14,650 4,882,220 4,684,788 200,989 4,885,777
Benefits
i
Technical
B 583,433 - 583,433 557,860 - 557,860
Salaries
& 26,375 - 26,375 28,604 - 28,604
Benefits
TH
Administration
Zr i 5,525,811 733,404 6,259,215 5,005,824 574,067 5,579,891
Salaries
& 181,241 37,272 218,513 175,925 28,150 204,075
Benefits
ETEHN 1,123,341 - 1,123,341 1,193,892 - 1,193,892
Staff welfare
41,502,973 2,058,767 43,561,740 39,637,964 2,084,927 41,722,891
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9. Hith & EM X OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

AR K%EE Company and Group

ERES HRES 31 March ERES BRESD 31 March

General Fund  Development 2009 General Fund  Development 2008
Fund a2 Total Fund otal
B HKS B HKS B HKS B HKS i

MAEHE REN 1,933,800 - 1,933,800 1,861,800 - 1,861,800
Rent and rates for office

e 558,492 - 558,492 656,554 - 656,554
Depreciation
ENl « XA REBE 2,043,469 36,764 2,080,233 1,640,330 128,641 1,768,971
Printing, stationery and
postage

368,359 - 368,359 235,464 - 235,464
EER#EE

Renovation and repairs

HEMEFERAX 1,909,779 - 1,909,779 1,424,252 - 1,424,252
Other office expenses

HiA 161,526 - 161,526 97,350 - 97,350
Miscellaneous expenses

6,975,425 36,764 7,012,189 5,915,750 128,641 6,044,391
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10. £EFIERE/(EB) SURPLUS/(DEFICIT) FOR THE YEAR

REBERFERFRHG/(BR)ENR TFIEE

The Group's surplus/(deficit) for the year is arrived at after charging:

TREE
General Fund

BREREAD
Development

B HKS

A7 K% B Company and Group

31 March TRES ERES 31 March
2009 General Fund  Development
Fund A2 Total Fund
BEHKS B HKS B HK $

60,000 60,000 60,000

558,492 656,554 656,554

1,877,000 1,800,000 1,800,000

B HKS
ZERIEN & 60,000
Auditors' remuneration
e 558,492
Depreciation
FiHELEEERR 1,877,000
Operating lease rental on land
and building

11.

12.

AKAFREZE2009F3A831BILFEFISE
E#rAE¥2,481,3137C (20084 : Ei8
¥E2,033,1057T)

RAFE - ST 2R A R B
DRI AEEE,852,0407T (B3 BTSN
BEFRBHEN 474 8097 (R M 5E4)) R B #E
1,336,797 - RER + BINXILR TR

B2 A BE#1,500,0007T (BT EE SN
BEFUEHE1,500,0007T (R KT #E4)) - M EAR
REBESAWRERBIGINUER TR

gjj o

EEEgREME

ARRAIEEGK B BERAFE A U ER
5 WHAE (AT B £ (2008 5F : &) ©

BIE

ARAMRE (TRIGED) F88 HEHRLH
MIRIE » Bt - ARBWLR P B IREKRA
ABEEMSHAEL B - (20085 M)

11.

12.

The surplus for the year ended 31 March 2009 dealt with in
the financial statements of the Company is HK$2,481,313
(2008: deficit of HK$2,033,105).

Total incomes and expenditures of VPS for the year are
HK$1,852,040 (including the supplementary Government
subsidy of HK$1,474,809 (note 4)) and HK$1,336,797,
respectively. Total incomes of outbound cultural exchange
activities are HK$1,500,000 (the supplementary Government
subsidy of HK$1,500,000 (note 4)) and there are no
outbound cultural exchange activities held under the
General Fund during the year.

COUNCIL MEMBERS' REMUNERATION

No Council Members received or are going to receive any
remuneration in respect of their services during the year
(2008: Nil).

TAX

The Company has been exempted under Section 88 of
the Inland Revenue Ordinance from all taxes under the
Ordinance. As a result, no provision for Hong Kong profits
tax has been made in these financial statements. (2008: Nil)
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WM EW S NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
200993 A31H 31 March 2009

13. #EBE R PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

A7) M %EE Company and Group

NS e BB
Furniture and Musical Computer
equipment instruments equipment
B HKS B HKS BEHKS

200943 AH31H
At 31 March 2009

20083 H31H & 2008F4H1H :
At 31 March 2008 and 1 April 2008:

B AR 2,179,961 1,922,703 680,045 4,782,709
Cost

2 E (1,680,464) (1,695,504) (613,865) (3,989,833)
Accumulated depreciation

R EFE 499,497 227,199 66,180 792,876
Net carrying amount

2008F4A1H « IR Rt ERIFE 499,497 227,199 66,180 792,876
At 1 April 2008, net of accumulated depreciation

0 84,670 249,845 229,693 564,208
Additions

FRTERE ( 378,479) (119,547) (60,466) ( 558,492)

Depreciation provided during the year

20093 A31H M RHTERFE 205,688 357,497 235,407 798,592
At 31 March 2009, net of accumulated
depreciation

20094 3H31H :
At 31 March 2009:

B AR 2,231,342 2,157,548 793,768 5,182,658
Cost
ZFE (2,025,654) (1,800,051) (558,361) (4,384,066)

Accumulated depreciation

REFE 205,688 357,497 235,407 798,592
Net carrying amount
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HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(BEERAER BT AR Limited by Guarantee)

M EM S NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
200993 HA31H 31 March 2009

13. H422 R 345 () PLANT AND EQUIPMENT(continued)

A7 &% E Company and Group

VS E T g3
Furniture and Musical 4% Total
equipment instruments equipment
B HKS P HKS B HKS

20084%3A31H
At 31 March 2008

20074818 :

At 1 April 2007:

B AR 2,017,621 1,626,774 637,082 4,281,447
Cost

25 E (11,299,570) (1,537,639) (541,070) (3,378,279)

Accumulated depreciation

IR EDFE 718,051 89,135 96,012 903,198
Net carrying amount

2007F4A18 MR RFAMERFE 718,051 89,135 96,012 903,198
At 1 April 2007, net of accumulated depreciation

i 207,340 295,929 42,963 546,232
Additions

FRTERE ( 425,894) (157,865) (72,795) (656,554)

Depreciation provided during the year

20083 A31 Ak Rt TERFAE 499,497 227,199 66,180 792,876
At 31 March 2008, net of accumulated
depreciation

200843H31H :
At 31 March 2008:

B AR 2,179,961 1,922,703 680,045 4,782,709
Cost
25 E (1,680,464) (1,695,504) (613,865) (3,989,833)

Accumulated depreciation

IREFE 499,497 227,199 66,180 792,876
Net carrying amount
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HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED

(BERAERE T AR Limited by Guarantee)

WM EW S NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

200943 H31H 31 March 2009

14. B AT #E#E INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Company A A

2009 2008
HKS 5%  HKS %

I LRI « AR , 6

Unlisted shares, at cost - —

ITZMBARZFBEET :

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

B SZ e 45 4 3t B
HiE Place of
Name incorporation

and operations

BRREPEBEERLA BB
Hong Kong Children Chinese Orchestra Limited Hong Kong
BRLERLEBERAT N
Hong Kong Junior Chinese Orchestra Limited Hong Kong
BERBLFRHLERRAF BE
Hong Kong Young Chinese Orchestra Limited Hong Kong
BERPLELKBEER AT N
HKCO Orchestral Academy Limited Hong Kong

BETEAR
PR 2 B
Nominal

value of issued
ordinary share
capital

B2 T
HK$2
B2 T
HK$2
B2 T
HK$2
B T
HK$1

NGV LN

Bt

Percentage of equity
directly attributable
to the Company

2009

100

100

100

100

2008

100

100

100

FEER
Principal
activities

N E R
Dormant
NGB
Dormant

NaE

Dormant

TE R

Dormant
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15.

16.

FE W b =X

ARBRAGEEZERLEERRATEN
BREITABRET EEH-KR—E=WE
H o AR E K& B K EEEWIRK G RS
BEMNESG - - BEEEeE MBI BYN
H o BN ERERARKRRAR RAEEZ
EURIERREZMAREZFPER  EESR
BRI EBDEFOER - BEIRK DR

B o
B

KW ER R ERRTEAREBERRKE SRA
ZIREBR DT ¢

AL N1EA

Less than 1 month past due

B =318 A
1 to 3 months past due

B3 ZE61E A
3 to 6 months past due

EEHERRBE . BRIRALES % EARE
BARMESRCHRIBITFPARM - R
BELR AEEEEEXNERREER
SER/BELRERE  BRAEEERY
BEREY MAFERDEERATEH
Ym e RRAREERZEEHFTEEMNE
MR EMERERT -

FENFIE - e Kk H M E WK
R2009%43A31H  ARAkAEBH Y
B RHMEWRNIIEB B IRE -
(20084 + )

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2009

15.

16.

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE

The Company's and Group's sales of concert tickets are
mainly conducted on credit. The credit period is generally
for a period of one to two months. The Company and the
Group seek to maintain strict control over their outstanding
receivables. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and
the fact that the Company's and the Group's accounts
receivables relate to a number of diversified customers,
there is no significant concentration of credit risk. Accounts
receivable are non-interest-bearing.

The aged analysis of the trade receivables that are neither
individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as
follows:

A7 % B Company and Group

2009 B¥ HK$S 2008 B¥ HK$S

265,102 321,545
564,099 5,000
6,000 1,860
328,405

835,201

Accounts receivables that were past due but not impaired
relate to a number of independent customers that have a
good track record with the Group. Based on past experience,
the Council Members of the Group are of the opinion that
no provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
balances as there has not been a significant change in
credit quality and the balances are still considered fully
recoverable. The Group does not hold any collateral or other
credit enhancements over these balances.

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

As at 31 March 2009, the Company’s and the Group's
deposits and other receivables were neither past due nor
impaired (2008: Nil).
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HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
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WM EW S NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
200993 A31H 31 March 2009

17. e RZEFEHEELEH CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

&8 Group

A7l Company

2009 2009 2008 B
B HKS B HKS HK$
RIT45
5 RRIT 15,239,579 3,437,659 15,239,572 3,437,653
Cash and bank balances
= H =5
’E."Hﬁ’m ) 3,500,000 11,000,000 3,500,000 11,000,000
Time deposits
18,739,579 14,437,659 18,739,572 14,437,653

Q) siowees eoveus EEEEE

18.

19.

FRI|ITZHERBERITE A FRERR
FBHE c REARARAEEHREH
Kzt RHERFERA-HEMRE

ARE Ao BRI R Z %S 5 E B
Boe
EAiRER B RE

ENIRER®RS  BERCOBHRA
AT -

EEEERY
ARFRAEBUGEAEFARES
FRYE - BEENERERA =
FRE

MR2009F3A31H » AR A R AEEIRE
AR EHEMEARARI N 2 HKIE
e@EmmT

—FRA

Within one year

E-EZFNF(BEEEMEF)

In the second to fifth years, inclusive

18.

19.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and two months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the
Company and the Group, and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates.

CREDITORS AND ACCURED LIABILTIES

Creditors are non-interest-bearing and are normally settled
on 60-day terms.

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

The Company and the Group leases its office properties
under operating lease arrangements. Lease for the
properties are negotiated for terms ranging from one to
three years.

At 31 March 2009, the Company and the Group had total
future minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

‘N7l & B Company and Group

2009 2008
HK$ &% HK$ &%
1,768,667 1,800,000

1,800,000
1,768,667 3,600,000
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20.

LEREs 2T A

ERSMTANGEER ZIREENT

€ ®MEE Financial assets

JE U B 3%

Accounts receivable

CREAEMFERNRE - Re REMERIKRE
Financial assets included in prepayments, deposits
and other receivables

RekERREEBAE
Cash and cash equivalents

£ ® B & Financial liabilities

CRHABERERNRERENEE
Financial liabilities included in creditors and accrued
liabilities

21.

MBEEAREEZEEREE

AEEMBTAMPRZTERBRAEER
RikrsEeRk - BEEXERT R
RIBEEEERRIHE  HEWT -

EERER

AEESRMEE  TEBRERE . RE
REMEKIRZEERRE - TyREH T A
EREZHA MEARREFRZETLA
ZIREE - ASEEHMRSSHEREE
F) R] [ YR ER - DA TR S 1 AT [ I SRR
EH R R ERERER - AREXE(E
EREBD KT OER -

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2009

20. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial
instruments as at the balance sheet date are as follows:

N IR 7R

Loans and receivables

2009 ## HK$ 2008 1 HKS

A&l Company

Loans and receivables

2009 & HK$ 2008 B HKS

835,201 328,405 835,201 328,405
300,524 2,201,433 300,524 2,201,433
18,739,579 14,437,659 18,739,572 14,437,653
19,875,304 16,967,497 19,875,297 16,967,491

LA SH A AN A afE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

2009 HE#E HKS 2008 H¥& HKS

360,613 222,089

A 7] Company
B AR 2 @R BE

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

2009 B HK$ 2008 B HKS$

360,613 222,089

21. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMNETS OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES

The main risk arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are credit risk and liquidity risk. The Council Members

reviews and agrees policies for managing the risk as below.

Credit risk

The credit risk of the Group's financial assets, which
comprise accounts receivable and deposits and other
receivables, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of this
instrument. The Group reviews the recoverable amounts
of each financial assets regularly to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are recognised for the irrecoverable
balances. The Group has no significant concentration of

credit risks.

@ swowees eoveus IEEEE



@ siwowaes eoueus [EEICE

goooobodod

HONG KONG CHINESE ORCHESTRA LIMITED
(000000000 Limited by Guarantee)

$UF 5 hk o WY ik

200943 H31H

21.

22.

BERAREEZERRBEE)

RBESERE

AEBNBREEHERAK REHOR
BELHFR  RERHNASFHE - BN
MR ERRBESHENR -

REBRRAKERRIE Z &/

gooog

ooooooooOoooooOooooaon
ooooooooOoooooOooooaon
oooooooooooo

ooooooooOoooooOooooaon
ooooooooOoooooOooooaon
OO0Ooo00000o2009030310 02008
Oo303100000o0o0ooooooaon
oooooooooo

ooooooooo@oooooooao
oO0)yoooooooooooooooao
ooooio

gooobooon

gooozo009090230bobooOooOoOO
gooooo

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
31 March 2009

21.

22,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMNETS OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk
The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current and
expected liquidity requirements to ensure it maintains

sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contracted
undiscounted payments, was as follows:

Capital management

The primary objective of the Group's capital management
is to safeguard the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions.
The Group is not subject to any externally imposed capital
requirements. No changes were made in the objectives,
policies or processes for managing capital during the year
ended 31 March 2009 and 2008.

The Group monitors capital using a current ratio, which is
current assets divided by current liabilities. The Group's
policy is to keep the current ratio above 1.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the Council on 23 September 2009.
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K#FH B A Accolade Donor

($1,000,000 or above)

A& £FH: [REFRE  AREV] @ HFH: [EEEZE|  KSNEZ-
One who believes that the Orchestra deserves the highest honour.

REREXXES
BB RGEES
i

3L 5 A\ Brilliance Donor

ETH BANTE  WESENESELAER -

Kerry Group Kuok Foundation Ltd
The Robert H. N. Ho Family Foundation
Blenc de Chine

($500,000 - $999,999)
sk - Gy H: [&3h%K] - (G :

One who ranks the Orchestra as brilliant in artistic excellence.
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FEmEERAR

5% 48 A Connoisseur Donor

875 e K] < 5hE%E - 5hp - KRFERKEEZE -

Bank of China (Hong Kong)
China Overseas Holdings Limited
Safety Godown Group

The Hongkong Bank Foundation
Care & Health Limited

($100,000 - $499,999)

ME - HBRATES  FHASHRE -SAR: [ASHS] [ALEAERN] - ASERENRESENRSHER -

One who accords critical acclaim to the Orchestra.
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2007 B B2 B B A 82
ERREEE —IRELL

Bank of Communicatoins BComBest Services
Care & Health Limited

Renaissance Kowloon Hotel, Hong Kong

Lu’s Foundation Ltd

2007 Montblanc de la Culture Arts Patronage Award -
Ms Liza Wang

B ¥ 585 A Delight Donor

($10,000 - $99,999)
HE - Al BE - UREZFESE o
One who finds pleasure and delight in the music of the Orchestra.
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2% A Encore Donor

($1,000 - $9,999)

TR, b aEh 52 4%
BE - EEAREE%-

One who enjoys the performance of the Orchestra and wants it to continue to develop and grow.
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BIARER(TX) : FETHRRH
Donors’ Title (English) : By Dr Carlye W L Tsui

ESRI China (Hong Kong) Limited
Dr Annie Wong

Ms Leung Oi Sie, Elsie

Mr Tsui Kwok Choy

Miss Linda Yung Y W

Mr Lam Yiu & Mr Andy Lam
Mr Chau Hon Man

Mr Chan Chin Hua

Ms Leung Kam Sheung

Ms Yuen Hoi Ling

Ms Wong Yin Man

Mr Fan Kam-ping BBS JP
Dr Kelvin Wong

Ms Susanna Chiu

Mr Davie Au Yeung
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